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Nautical Petroleum plc

Nautical Petroleum plc intends to become
a significant producer of oil, initially in the

United Kingdom Continental Shelf (UKCS)
and in Europe.

Our aim is to secure further oil discoveries
in the UKCS and EU through acquisitions,
farmins and licensing rounds. We aim to
achieve near term production on current
assets and enhance crude value and
mitigate risk through our relationships.

We will acquire oil exploration blocks with
low to moderate commitments and farmout
to mitigate portfolio risk, with the overall
aim of enhancing shareholder value.
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Highlights for the year ended
30 June 2011
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£50.6m

Profit for the year (2010: £2.3m loss)
Inclusive of gain on partial sale of Mariner of £55 1m

£137.9m

Net assets {2010: £57.7m)

Cash and deposits (2010: £11 7m)

» Share placing raised £30 3m (£28 9m net
of expenses)

» Kraken 9/02b-4 appraisal well extended the
oll accumulation to the south of the field

» Kraken 9/02b-4z west exploration sidetrack
encountered 2 ol bearing reservolrs

» Sale of 20 6667% of Mariner completed for
£87 5m, retaning a 6% Interest

» Catcher area — Varadero and Burgman
oll discoveries

» Nautical equity interest in Block 9/2b Kraken
increased from 35% to 50%

Significant events
post year end

» Independent Resource Opinion confirms
Kraken Heimdal lll resources of 160 mmbc
(gross), 83 mmbo net to Nautical

» Kraken 9/02b-5z horizontal appraisal well
tested at 4,550 bopd




Nautical Petroleum ple

02

Our portfolio

As at 14 October 2011
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Core assets Other assets
Kraken + Successful 9/02b-4 appraisal well and 9/02b-4z Ketos Block 9/1a (Licence P1759 — 100% operated interast}
exploration sidetrack driled n Q3 2010 Probable axtenston of oif beanng Haimdal | reservorr
Block 9/2b . 8/02b-4 Hemdal Il £ 83 foet thicknes encountered by the 9/02b 2 well Well planned for 2012
-4 Heimaal ll reservair o eet thickness, dependent on results of new 3D seismic Best estimate
o average porosity of 38% and average oil saturation of | contingert resources of 5 5 mmbo {net across Block 9/1a and
{Licence P1077 - 50% 87% 9/02b-4z exploration sietrack found excellent Block 9/20) Best estimate prospective resources of 34 mmbo
operated nterest) quality oll bearing Heimdal Il and Heimdal Il reservorrs | (08t across Block 8/1a and Block 9/20}
west of the Kraken fault TJudor Rose Block 14/30a (Licence P1463 ~ 20% nterest)
*  9/02b-5 and 9/02b-5z appraisal wells drilled i Wall 1o be dnilled on Tudor Rose discovery in Q4 2011 to
03 2011 estabiish API grawity and viscosity, and to investigats the ol
water contact (OWC) Best estimate contingent resources of
* The 9/02b-5z horizontal sidetrack encounterad 49 mmbao {gross) 10 mmbe (nety Exploration upside i Buffalo
1,598 feet of net pay with average porosity of 38% prospect (Cretaceous, Kopervik Sandstone)
and average oil saturation of 90% Spamiards Bilock 16/21g {Licence P1655 - 21% mnterest)
s 9/02b-57 tested and flowed at a maximum stabiised Reprocessed 30 seismic defines large Jurassic prospect
rate of 4,550 bopd downdip from 15/21a-38 ol discovery Significant ol column
» Anew 3D seismic survey over Kraken and the 'tmg"ag f{?g“ p@isé’{,?faéa 'rt‘ d'icc‘"f“" well Wf’“ scheduted
surrounding blocks was acguired in Q2 and Q3 2011 1%;:”:;) {g:'oss) 24 mmfo ﬁe't?qa € Prospeciive resoLrees
» Nautical purchased an additional 15% equity from " Siocks 1137200 and 119730 L oye———
errow Blocl c an icence -
Canamens in May 2011 to increass stake to 50% operated interest) Large near shaore gas prospect adiacent
« Target to submit Field Development Plan (FOF) in Q3 to Walney Island Bast estmats prospective resourcas
2012, with first o in 2015 290 bef gress) 145 bel {nel) Onshore drll site identified
e Hest estimate contingent resources of 160 mmbo for 2012 driing
{gross), 83 mmbo {net) - (pre-9/02b-52) m Heimdal Il PL1M0 Norihern Ireland (20% interest) Located in Central
Larne - Lough Neagh basin Analogous to East Insh Sea basin
Larga leads at Parmian and Tnassic levels Up to 275km of
seismic baing ecquired in Q4 2011
Kraken South Blocks 9/6 and 9/7 (Licence P1575 - 35%
Catcher « June 2010 Catcher and Catcher East ight ol operated Interest} Contains probable continuation of Scylla
discoveries {31° APl channel and possible Kraken analogue New 3D seismic
BlOCk;/28/9 = January 2011 successful exploration discovery at gfcg:‘;g;:;:ﬁgﬂfﬁgﬂf’igg” area survey, and reprocessing
and 28/10¢ Varadero {26° AP))
« March 2011 succassful exploration discovery and ?F'):‘r’a'f(z ;’{ rﬁ;‘;‘g 352%‘;]'%1':1?:3 Tgﬁ :‘S"o‘llumi?:el‘s‘rﬁzé e
iy, tu
{Licence P1430 - sidetrack at Burgman (24° AP) confirned Lusca prospect High tech 3D seismic survey has
15% interest) « With previous Catcher and Catcher East discovenes, been acquirad over southem 2/26
and a North Catcher appraisal well driled in February Block 9/11c {Licence P979 — 80% coperated interast) Possible
20‘131- there are 7 successful reservorr penetrations southern extansion of Manner accumulation in Heimdal
to date Sandstone
« Target to submit FDP in Q4 2012, with first ol In 2015 Blocks 8/15a and %/11d (Lcerce P1758 — 6% interest)
* Current total best estimate contingent resources Possiblo western extension of Manner accumulation in Heimdal
in Block 28/9 estimated at 155 mmbo (gross), Sandstone
23 mmbo {net) Keddington (Licence PEDLOOS, 10% mnterest) UK onshore
& An exploration well on the Carnaby prospect, wast producing field n Lingolnshire. Current production constramed
of Burgman, 1s planned for Q1 2012 to average 130 bopd and 500 mcf of gas by gas flanng imits
Cperator nvestigating opticns to generate electricity from the
producad gas which will allow figher production rates
St Laurent France (22% interest) Located in Aquitaine basin,
south-west France Contans large Audignon Ridge subsalt
Mariner s Ahighly apprassed figld, with a successful extended gas prospect Best estmate prospective resources of 3TCF
Block 9, /1 1 well test (EWT) on the Maureen formation and gf;;}i 1660 bef (net) Farmout expacted to be signed in
oc a commercial flow rates measured with well test on the
pass shallower Homdsl reservr Portens France Ok rires Locaied 1 e arrt b
cence - -
g;/o nterest) » Development concept of & PDUQ (Production, Drilling, | way 1o ba followed by acqusition of new seismic

Utiltres and Quarters) platform with floating storage
has been selected Front End Engmeenng Design
{FEED) 15 scheduled to commence in Q4 2011

Target to submit FDP 1n Q4 2012, with first il in 2016
Sale of interest N November 2010 to Statoll, reducing
Nautical's share from 26 6667% to 6%

Best estimate contingent resources (development
pending) of 430 mmbo (gross), 26 mmbo (net)

Gex France {20% interest Located n eastern France near
the Swiss bordar Previous dnlling on the block encountered
shallow heavy ol Sansrmic being reprocassed and & gravity
survey 1S being acquired

Baltimore Ireland (40% nterest) Licensing option 1041 10
the North Celtic Sea basn containing the Baltimore heavy ol
discovery Marlin gas prosgect identified In the block

Nemo Ireland {25% interest) Licensing option 2/07 in
the North Celtic Sea basin containing the Nemo heavy
il discovery
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Significant progress

Patrick Kennedy
Chairman

| am pleased to report that your
Company has continued to deliver
achievements at a steady pace in
a challenging environment.

Thus 1s my first report to you as Charman and as | reflect over
the last 12 months, | am pleased to report that your Company
has conunued to deliver achievernents at a steady pace in a
challenging environment The combination of strategic planning
around our core discoveries Kraken, Catcher and Marner,
continuing work on our pipeline of exploration assets and a
focus on development has enabled your Company tc deliver
excellent results

2010/11 has witnessed continued economic uncertainty and
turbulent equity markets with Brent crude oil prices recovering
from $80 a barrel a year ago to around $120 a barrel before
fallng back to current levels of around $110 a barrel In addition,
the fiscal envirorment has posed challenges with the unexpected
increase In March 2011 of the Supplementary Corporation Tax
{SCT) negatively affecting sentiment These factors contnbuted
to a downward pressure on the share pnice in Hi 2011, but the
Company's flexible business mode, strategic management
approach and significant operational success have helped
mitigate this downside impact Overall, Nautical has performed
well against its peers Having started 1 July 2010 with a market
capitalisation of £106m, our current market capitalisation of over
£250m represents a signficant achievement

Nautical has delivered ouistanding results — a profit for the year
of £50 Bm with shareholders' funds of £137 9m (2010 £577m)
The successful private plaging of 24 3m ordinary shares at

125 pence underinad shareholder confidence These proceeds,
together with the proceeds from the sale of 20 6667 % of Marnner,
created healthy cash and deposit batances of £110 0m (2010
£117m) at 30 June 2011 The Company's strong liquidity

1S expected to be sufficient to fund our planned exploration and
appraisal activities through 2012 and beyond and positions us
well to take our key assets to development

Your Board 1s responsible for the performance of the business,
safeguarding the Company's assets and dehvernng our goal of
becoming a significant ol producer intially on the UK Continental
Shelf (UKCS) We have taken steps to align the Company’s
capabiites with its plans We remain opportunistic yet cautious
1IN our approach, recognising the importance of nsk management
when exploning and evaluating options

Reputation s a key intangible asset and Nautical 1s committed

to managing its reputation by applying ethical business principles
and ensuring that Health and Safety are high on the agenda

Our strong reputation has helped strengthen our relationstups
with key stakehalders, attract long-term investors and also in

our drive to atiract the best talent needed to deliver our strategy

It remains for me to thank my fellow Directors and all our
colieagues for ther skill and dedication Your Board, working
as ateam, ably supported by our Company Secretary, has
successiully navigated your Company through challenging
conditons Finally, | thank our sharehotders for therr continuing
support | am confident that Nautical 1s well positioned to
continue to make significant progress

md%wzﬁ

Patrick Kennedy
Chairman
14 October 2011
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The Company’s strong liquidity
is expected to be sufficient to
fund our planned exploration
and appraisal activities through
2012 and beyond and positions
us well to take our key assets
to development.

Nautical Petroloum plc
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Continued drilling success

Steve Jenkins
Chief Executive Officer

Nautical is pleased to report

a continuation of the drilling
success started in 2010,
culminating in the outstanding
Kraken test result.

Nautical i1s pleased to repert a contnuation of the driling success
started in 2010, culminating in the outstanding Kraken test rasult
Significant resources were added to both Kraken and the
Catcher area establishing the Company as a significant mid-cap
enterpnise focused on the North Sea and Europe This intense
activity has been fuelled by the proceeds of the August 2010
private placing and the timely sale of a major part of the
Company's interest in Manner

Qur augmented treasury enables us to withstand the macro-
economic storms which have recently buffeted the markets
Sentiment has been further dented by the Government's
unexpected ncrease to Supplementary Corporation Tax (SCT)
However | am pleased to report that the iImpact has been
partially mitigated by the increase in Ring Fenced Expenditure
Supplement {RFES)

In the wake of the tragedy 1n the Gulf of Mexico, Nautical ts fully
participating in industry ntiatives to make drilling safer and to
prevent any similar incident in the North Sea To this end, | am
pleased to report that the industry has constructed a capping
device to be used in the event of a well control incident, which
we trust will never have to be deployed

Ever mindful to the nsks of drilling in harsh weather, deep water
conditions, Nautical wil continue to explore/appraise in the more
benign weather conditions prevailing to the East of Shetlands,
Moray Firth and Central North Sea

The seismic, dnilling and testing actmty in the peniod has driven
the Company’s 3 core assets (Kraken, Catcher and Marnner)
closer to development with all 3 expected to receive
development sanchon in 2012 Qur expanding inventory of
exploration and appraisal opportunities will generate near

term dnling actmity which should yield further development
opportunities As ever, wa will continue to manage our large
portfolio to ensure that sharehelders' funds are expended
judiciously in growing the Company
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Kraken - testing confirms significant commercial
accumulation

Early in the period, the successful 8/02b-4 appraisal well and
9/02b-4z exploration sidetrack reinforced our confidence in our
geotogical models by intersecting the thickest section of Tertiary,
Heimdal lll reservorr encountered to date Pleasingly, this was
surpassed by the 9/02b-5 pilot well which penetrated 94 not
fest of reservoir exhibiting an average porosity of 38% and core
permeabilities of up to 5 Darcies Ol saturations had been

very high in all wells, boosting confidence for the results of the
honzental sidetrack of this well A continuous reservorr interval
of 1,698 feet of net ol pay was dnlled exhibiting oil saturations of
80% and the same high porosities seen elsewhere In the Kraken
reservorr Test results over the completed net pay of 1,287 feet,
were outstanding with a maximum stabilised rate of 4,550 bopd,
far exceeding the mimimum commercial rate, even though
restricted by the Imited facdties on the ng Under normal
production conditions, this relatively short horizontal well

would be capable of producing 8,000 bopd Since horizonta!
developrment wells will be considerably longer, higher
production rates will be achievable

An addittonal key success of the 9/02b-5z operations was the
openhole gravel pack operation that was conducted to prevent
sand production There was no sand production during the test
and the well productivity was very high indicating little or no
formation damage This gives us great confidence that similar
completions can be successfully installed in the development
wells to give assurance of sand-free production at high oll rates

There are 6 successful penetrations in the Kraken field and our
confidence has grown in the prediction of the thickness of the
reservorr away from the wells using advanced seismic technrques
{colour inversion) The confirmation of the accuracy of these
seismic techniques by driling has been a major step forward in
the understanding of the distnbution of the Heimdal il reservair
and 1s a great tnbute to the tenacity and skills of Nautical’s
growing technical team Further clarity on the distribution of the
reservorr 1S expected from the recently acquired 3D seismic
which will aid the placing of development wells

Nautical Petroleum plc
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Before the 9/02b-5 and 5z wells were drilled, Nautical's view

of the best estmate contingent rescurces was endorsed by our
Competent Person Kraken 1s now one of the most significant,
soon-to-be developed, accumulations in the UK Continental
Shelf (UKCS) Reservoir stmulation studies have estimated a
recoverable resource of 160 mmbo (gross), with upside of up

to 311 mmbo (gross) The results of the latest wells will be used
to update the geclogical models and the subsaquent simuiations
will be incorporated into a Competent Person's Report

Nautical's decision to increase its equity in Kraken to 50%
sustained the momentum of the evaluation of the block and

was Justified by the excellent well cutcomes and flow rates

The Joint Venture has been strengthened by our new partner
First Ol Expro Lemited and 1s fully aigned in moving Kraken
forward to project sanchon The development team 1s being
augmented by both new staff and contractors and 1s working
towards Concept Selection in Q1 2012 and final project sanction
{Field Development Plan approval) in Q3 2012, leading to first
alin 2015

Catcher - major commercialresource with low risk upside
100% success (N the Catcher arsa drilling campaign has yelded
3 new accumulations — Grreater Catcher, Varadero and Burgman
The Greater Catcher discovery wells at Catcher and Catcher East
were followed by a Catcher sidatrack and a Catcher North weli
Pressure and oll sample data proved that the Cromarty sand and
the Tay sand are in communication throughout the accumulation

Varadero, the first well In the 2011 campaign, was a resounding
success finding ol in thicker than pregnosed high qualty
reservairs In the Tay sands (same reservor as Catcher East)
Encouragingly 2 thick sands were encountered with additonal
pay In younger sands Maost importantly, the success at Varadero
confirms that bnght seismic amplitudes are indicative of high
porosity oll bearing sands, a phenomenon further proved by
the successful Burgman well to the south The discovery well
encountered gas and oll in thin sands In the Tay, however the
subsequent sidetrack to the south-east found thick cil bearing
Tay sands
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Throughout the 3 discovenes, in both the Cromarty and Tay
reservorrs, quality 1s excellent, exhubiting porosities in the high
thirties and multi-Darcy permeabiiies Alihough the gravity of
the oll decreases to the west (31° APl in Catcher, 28° APl In
Varadero and 24° APl in Burgman), viscosity remans under
10cp throughout, thus productivity from these shallow wells
will be excellent

The volume of resources discovered to date offers an
economically robust, stand alone development which 1s
scheduled for project sanction in 4 2012 An expenenced
development team has been tasked to delver the project with
expertise seconded to the operator, EnCore Ol ple, from the
Joint Venture partners Nautcal personnel are making a large
contnbution to both the geoscience and the engingering
undarstanding of the block

There remain a number of well defined exploration targsts in the
block which will be further evaluated using the recently acquired
high density 3D seismic data Drilling will recommence in Q1
2012 with the Carnaby exgloration well targeting the Lower Tay
and the Cromarty sands, both of which lie above the implied

ol water contact (OWC) in the adjacent Burgman discovery

The need for further appraisal drilling activity s currently being
evaluated by the Joint Venture

Mariner ~ value realised, project re-energised

In Novemnber 2011, we sold to Statoll 20 6667% of our 26 6667%
interest in the Marniner discovery for a total consideration of

£87 5m In addition, Statoll will provide a maximum £3 Om

carry of the Company’s cost through to project sanction

Annual report and accounts 2011

The decision to sell the major portien of our stake in Manner
proved very timely since the increase in SCT in April stalled the
project Nauticat worked closely with our co-venturers (Statol
and ENI) and HM Treasury to secure a solution which would
allow the project to progress | am pleased to report that an
increase in RFES from 6 to 10% was sufficient to enable the
operator to announce that the Marnner projsct will commence
Front End Engineering and Design mn the autumn, leading to
project sanction befare the end of 2012 OCn the critical path,
the Joint Venture has recently announced that the development
concept will be a fixed platforrm with additional driling using a
Jack-up ng in the early years Nautical still retains a meaningful
stake in the Marner project (26 mmbo net resource) and shares
the operator's commitment and enthusiasm

Exploration and appraisal - managing the portfolio

for growth

Efficient and low cost growth can stil be achieved through
acquinng blocks in icensing rounds, farming down, and then
driling wells This strategy has served Nautical weli, as evidenced
by Kraken and Catcher, and we will continue to pursue new
opportunities in the UKCS and Eurcpe Your Gompany 1s very
efficient at screening, identifying and secuning low cost entry

Into opportunities and rnigorously managing an exploration/
appraisal pertfolio

Arecent example I1s the award in the 26th UKCS licensing round
of a 100% interest in Block 9/1a, immedhately to the west of
Kraken There 1s evidence on 2D seismic data that imples that
the Ketos accumulation (the Heimdal | reservorr discovered by
the 9/02b-2 well} extends into the newly awarded block Nautical
has recently acquired over 1,000km? of 3D sersrmic over this and
3 other operated blocks to test this hypothesis and is planning to
drill a well in 2012 This could prove a substantial ol accumulation
(our Competent Person has already assigned best case
contingent resources of 5 5 mmbo net to Nautical, with

best case net prospective resources of 34 mmbao)
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An apprarsal well on the Tudor Rose heavy il discovery in block
14/30a will be spudded soon with the obyjectives of measunng
the ail gravity and viscosity and the depth of the Ol Water
Contract Exploration and appraisal dnlling elsewhere on the
Company's portfolio wilt continue apace in 2012 when an
appraisal well ts forecast on the Spaniard's accumulation

in blocks 15/21a and 15/21g

We are hopeful that we can secure an onshore licence in the
much delayed and yet to be announced 14th Onshore Licensing
Round to allow the dnling of the large Merrow gas prospect just
offshore in the East Insh Sea basin Seismic acquisiion has
commenced over PL1/10 Central Larne-Lough Neagh toidentify
prospects analogous to gas/oll fields in the East Insh Sea basin

Nautical continues to evaluate hcence and farmin opportunities
throughout Europe and the Mediterranean and we hope that we
will be able to announce new awards in the near future

Financial strength fuelling growth potential

| am delighted to report a profit for the year ended 30 June 2011
of £50 6m, thanks to the £55 1m profit on the sale of Manner

In August 2010, Nautical raised £28 9m, net of costs, through

a placing of new shares with existing and new institutional
investors As well as strengthening our balance sheet,

this significantly broadened our institutional base

QCur substantial cash and depostt balance, which was £110m

at year end, ensures that we are fully funded to execute our
aggressive exploration and appraisal programme throughout
2012 and beyond We will contmue 1o apply wgour and discipline
in the use of these funds to maximise value for shareholders

Nautical Petroteum plc
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The future — moving towards development on 3 projects
Building on the major achievement of establishing commercial
flow rates at Kraken, we look forward to sanctioning the project
in 2012 whilst becoming a Government recognised Production
QOperator We will continue to be a supportive Joint Venture
partner on both Catcher and Mariner, as both fields progress
to project sanction in 2012

We will seek to keep the exploration/appraisal hopper filled with
high quality opportunities to further augment the resource base
and expose shareholders to success at the dnlibit

Your Board 1s pleased that Nautical has successfully moved from
a micro-cap to mid-cap company which 1s supported and
respected by shareholders, its industry peers and financial
mnshtutions We aim to continue this upward trend n the future

Steve Jenkins
Chief Executive Officer
14 Qctober 2011
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Operational review UK continental shelf

Kraken

(Licence P1077 - 50% operated interest)

Kraken is a cornerstone asset that has
been substantially de-risked by the
successful production test of 9/02b-5z.
Studies are under way to define the first
phase of development with first oil
expected in 2015.

Key stats

» Large 3-way dip closed structure
contaning heavy oll In excellent
quality reservolr

Best estimate contingent resources
of 160 mmbo {gross), 83 mmbo {(net)

9/02b-4 appraisal well confrmed
substantial accumulation in the
core area and 9/02b-4z exploration
sidetrack confirmed resources to
the west of the Kraken Fault

» 9/02b-5 appraisal well found
thickest reservorr to date in the
field 9/02b-5z honzontal sidetrack
proved continuous reservoir and
flowed at maxmum stabilised rate
of 4,550 bopd (constrained by
surface test equipment)

» Concept selection studies under
way leading to FDP in 2012 and
first ol in 2015

b

=

b

-
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Block 9/2b (Licence P1077)

{Nautical 50% QOperator)

Bleck 9/2b was awarded as Nautical's first icence in the UKCS
in September 2003 The Block is focated on the East Shetland
Platform, west of the North Viking Graben Well 9/02-1A, drilled
In 1985, had previously tested ol from a reservor belonging to
the Heimdal Sandstone Member of the Tertary (Palaeocens)
system Since award of the licence, Nautical has drilled 5
appraisal wells and an exploraticn sidetrack, proving Kraken

to be a substantial ol accumulation which can be now be
progressed to development planning

The results of 9/02b-2, the icence commitment well drilled in
2007, proved an ol column of at least 252 feet and an oil-down-
to (ODT) 168 fest deeper than 9/02-1A discovery This appraisal
well not only encountered ol beanng Hesimdal Sandstone which
can be correlated with the 9/02-1A well (known as Unit Il sands)
but also penetrated an additional deeper oll bearing Heimdal
Unit | Sandstone

A third appraisal well, 9/02b-3, dniled in September 2008, was
located in a downdip area to the north-east of the discovery
wells in order to substantiate the ol column by intersecting the
Ol Water Contact (OWC) and to Investigate the upside (P10)
resources However, in this outlying area, the Heimdal
Sandstone proved to be absent

Subsequent to the negative outcome of the 9/02b-3 well,
significant work was undertaken to improve the understanding
of the areal distnbution of the reservorr and reduce the nisk of
further appraisal dnlkng, including a Controlled Source Electro
Magnetic {CSEM) survey, depositional modelling, specialist
seismic and sedmentology studies This work led to the
selection of an optimised apprassal focation Appraisal well
9/02b-4 was spudded in August 2010 and successfully
encountered the target Hermdal Unit Ill Sandstone, with a gross
ol column of 160 feet, substantially thicker and with a higher
porosity than expected Log evaluation indicated that the
Haimdal Unit Il main sand contained 83 feet of net oll pay with
an average porosity of 38 8% and an average ol saturaton

of 87 2% An ol water contact was not encountered in the
Heimdal Unit It main sand in this well

A wall test using a test stnng comprising sand screens and an
Electric Submersible Pump (ESP) was conducted on 9/02b-4

In order to recover uncontaminated reservorr fluid samples and
to confirm the productivity of the reservoir The well was initialty
pumped at a restnicted rate of 300 barrels per day and samples
obtained Subseguent to this flow perod, the productmty
declined markedly which was believed to be due to the plugging
of the sand screens, rather than a reservoir or oil quality issue
The test did not sustain production to surface but igh qualty
flud samples were collected

Following the 9/02b-4 production test, the lower section of the
well was abandoned and the 9/02b-4z sidetrack was dnlled to

validate an exploration target to the west of the Kraken Fault The
sidetrack successfully encountered ol bearng sands in bath the

Heimdal Unit il and Heimdal Unit [l reservoirs with true net oil
pays of 42 feet and 35 feet respectively The average porosities
In both uniis are very high, around 40%, with average ol
saturations of 85%

Nautical Petroleum ple

11

In July 2011, 9/02b-5 was spudded to further appraise the core
araa of the field Preliminary log evaluation indicates a calculated
net ol pay of 94 feet True Vertical Thickness (TVT), with average
porosity of 38% and average ol saturation of 78% As anticipated,
an oll water contact was not encountered at this location and the
Kraken discovery oll-down-to now extends to 3,947 fest True
Vertical Depth subsea (TVDss) The well was plugged back

and the 9/02b-5z sidetrack was dnlled This was a 2,003 foot
horizontal wellbore which had 1,598 feet of net pay with average
porosity of 38% and average oil saturation of 80% An openhole
gravel pack completion was installed and the well was tested
using an Electnic Submersible Pump The well flowed at a
maximum stahilised rate of 4,550 bopd, an excellent result which
exceeded the assumptions in the simulation model used in the
development studies The production rate was constramned by
the surface testing equipment Fluid samples were collected for
charactenzation, flow assurance and oll marketng studies

The results of the 9/02b-56 and -5z wells have shown an excellent
carrelation between the reservorr, depth and thickness, and the
coloured Invarsion seismic data This gives great confidence i
the reservorr mapping and for the future placement of
development wells

Qi samples have now been recovered from the Haimdal Unit it
reservor from all 3 successful appraisal wells Gravity of the all
15 14-15° APl and viscosity 1s 110-150c¢p, being a higher APl and
much less viscous than both the adjacent Bressay (500cp) and
Bentley (600-1,100cp) discoveries The o1l 1s more similar to that
in the producing Captain Field (19° APl and viscosity of 90¢p),
which came on production in 1997, peaked at 78,000 bopd In
2002 and 1s expected to exceed a 35% recovery factor

8Since an ol water contact has not been encountered In any of

the wells, 1t 1s probable that the aquifer support will be through

an edge water drive rather than a bottom water drive This is

supported by geochemical analysis which indicates that, although

the ol 15 biodegraded, 1t 15 not water washed, implying that the

water leg 15 remote from the core of the structure These aspects .
enhance the opportunity to control water production and to i
design water injection to optimise both the ail production rate

and the ultimate recovery from the reservolrr

Development planning and concept selection studies are under
way Nautical's current plan 1s for a phased development, inttially
targeting the resources in the core area of the field A Field
Development Plan {FDP) s to be submitted in 2012 with first

oll in 2015 As part of Nautical’'s oil marketing inibative, 1t 1s
encouraging to note that an assay has been carried out by

a refiner who has expressed a strong desire to purchase

Kraken crude
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Catcher

(Licence P1430 - 15% interest)

Block 28/9 is now proven to contain 4 oil
fields in 2 discrete high quality reservoir
sandstones. The substantial resources in
this prolific block now form the basis for
a robust and expeditious development.

Key stats

» 2 further discovernies, Varadero and
Burgman, supplement the success
of the Catcher and Catcher East
fields

» Proven ol bearing excellent quality
sandstones in 2 formations now
proven from 7 well penetrations —
100% drilling success

» Light oll with API gravity varying
from 31° In the east {Catcher) to
24° 1n the west (Burgman)

» Carnaby prospect, west of
Burgman, to be drilled in 2012

» Current total best estimate
contingent resources In Block 28/2
estimated at 155 mmbo (gross),

23 mmbo (net)
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Blocks 28/9 and 28/10c (Licence P1430)

{Nautical 15%)

This Traditiona! Licence 1s located on the West Central Platform,
waest of the Central Graben and the nearby Bittern Field Regional
and block specific evaluation was originally carmed out with
EnCore prior to application and successful award in the 24th
Seaward Licensing Round

The blocks contan the Catcher discovery in the Palasocene
(Cromarty Sandstone} and the Catcher East, Varadero and
Burgman discoveries in the Eocene (Tay Sandstone} Mapping
has demonstrated several similar and robust undrilled prospects
at both stratigraphic levels

The initial Catcher discovery by well 28/09-1 {and sidetrack
28/09-1Y) and the Catcher East discovery by well 28/09-1Z,
during the summer of 2010, heralded cne of the largest
discovenes on the UKCS in the last decade 2 further exploration
wells at Varadero and Burgman and an appraisal well at Catcher
North followed and successfully encountered additional
resources In late 2010 and early 2011

The Varadere exploration well, 28/09-2, some 4km west of the
Catcher discovery was driled in December 2010 to a total
measured depth of 5,205 feet having successfully encountered
high quality oll bearing reservoir within the target Tay Sandstone
The formation had a gross thickness of 186 feet with a calculated
net pay of 84 feat, significantly better than prognosed Analysis
of the logs indicates the reservoir qualty 1s excellent, with high
permeabilily, average porosity of 35% and average o1l saturation
of 84% In addition to the primary interval there 1s a further 22
feet of net hydrocarbon pay in thinner sands Wireline logging
and pressure testing has been carned out which indicate that the
reservorr fluids are ol with an AR of approximately 26° The well
also encountered deeper sands of Cromarty age (the principal
raservor in Catcher) although, as expected, they were not
hydrocarbon bearing at the Varadero location

During January 2011, the Catcher North appraisal well 28/09-3
was dritled ¢ 2 Skm north of the Catcher wells to a tofal
measured depth of 5,265 feet The well encountered gas in the
Tay Sandstone and ol in the Cromarty sandstone Pressure
data suggests that the Catcher North aif discovery s part of
the Catcher and Catcher East accumulation In support of this,
the calculated oll-water contact within the Cromarty Sandstone
section Is consistent with that established with the Catcher
discovery wells 28/09-1 and -1Y The reservor development

at this location was towards the lower end of expectations,
encountering 20 feet net pay within the Tay Sandstone, and

14 feat net pay within the Cromarty Sandstone However
reservorr quality was excellent with an average porosity of

31% in both reservorrs

Nautical Petroleum plc

13

The Burgman weli, 28/09-4, was spudded on 1 March 2011 on
a hanging wall structure situated 7km to the west and updip of
Catcher and some Skm south of Varadero The near vertical well
trajectory for the Burgman 28/9-4 well was designed to test 3
targets in the Tay, Cromarty and Jurassic Sandstones and the
wall reached a total depth of 5,990 feet The well encountered

2 sands in the Tay Formation, the Upper Tay Sandstone was

12 feet thick and gas beanng whilst the Lower Tay Sandstone
was 10 feet thick and contained 24 3° APl oIl Analysis of
pressure data indicates that the combined formations have a
gas-oll contact at 3,560 feet true vertical depth subsea (TVDss)
and an oil water contact at 3,980 feet TVDss giving a gas column
of at least 78 feet and an ol columin of 420 feet This ndicates
that the Lower Tay Sandstone, which s represented by high
seismic amplitudes throughout the Burgman prospect, hes
within the ol leg Whilst good quality Cromarty and Jurassic
Sandstones where encountered, they were water bearing

The original 28/09-4 well path was not optimised to test the

vary high amplitudes within the Tay Formation and so the well
was sidetracked some 1,641 feet to the southeast of 28/09-47
to encounter a prognosed thicker section The well was dnilled to
a total measured depth of 5,237 feet The sidetrack successfully
encountered a true vertical reservorr sechon of 84 feet nat oil pay
with an average porosity of 38% and an average ol saturation

of 95%, sigmificantly better than in the original Burgman well

The success of this recent drilling campaign underknes the great
potential of Block 28/9, with sands of thicknesses and quality
often surpassing the pre-dnll estmates Oil bearing Cromarty
Sandstonses were not encountered at Burgman and appear to
be limited to the Catcher area However, the seismic data can
confidently predict the presence of high quality hydrocarion
bearing Tay Sandstonas, proven by the Catcher East, Varadero
and Burgman discoveries This augurs wesll for the numerous
mapped anomalies on the block and a further exploration well
1s planned in Q1 2012 to test the Carnaby prospect located
about 2km to the west of Burgman on the footwall of the

major dwding fault

The four al discovenes have proven Block 28/9 to be one
of the most prolific on the UKCS in recent times Field
development siudies are well under way towards submitting
a Field Development Plan to the Government in 2012 with
awew to achieving first ol In 2015 Gross best estimate
total contingent resources are estimated to be 155 mmbo
(23 mmbo net) with significant exploratton upside remaining
on the block
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Mariner

{Licence P335 — 6% interest)

In November 2010 the Company completed
the sale to Statoil of a 20.6667% interest
and associated rights in Mariner for total

consideration of £87.5m.

Key stats

» Large oIl accumulations in the Maureen
and Heimdal reservorrs

» Highly appraised with 16 wells

» 63 day extended well test produced
662,000 barrels at 10,000+ bopd

» 14 5° APl oll

» Best estimate contingent resources
{development pending) of 430 mmbo
(gross), 26 mmbo (net)

Block 9/11a (Licence P335)

{Nautical & 0%)

Operated by Statoll Hydro ASA and located on the East
Shetland Platform, west of the Viking Graben, the Mariner oll
accumulation, discovered in 1981 and appratsed with 15
subsequent wall penetrations, 1s the largest, most highly
appraised undeveloped discovery In the UKCS These wells have
tested ol at 1,000 to 1,585 bopd from both the Palasocene
Maureen Sandstons and the shallower Heimdal Sandstone
Both sands have excellent reservor characteristics and, during
an extended wall test (EWT)} in 1997, a single horizontal well in
the Maureen Sandstone produced 662,000 barrels of ol over
63 days at a maximum rate of 14,991 bopd (14 5° APY)

Intsrpretation and integraton of the subsurface seismic and
geological data have enabled the operator to construct
geological models for the Hetmdal and Maureen reservoirs The
improved understanding of the field has allowed the subsurface
development plan to be optimised, particularly with regard to
well design and well placement The Maureen reservorr will be
developed using single branch long hornzontal wells whilst
dewviated mulh-lateral wells wili be used to develop the shallower
Heimdal reservor The Maureen wells will be drlled first as they
are expected to produce at initial Indvidual rates in excess of
20,000 bopd Drilling of the Heimdal reservorr will be scheduled
to maintain the production profile and wells will be located on a
close spacing to obtan a high recovery factor This optimised
development has resulted in a substantial increase In resources
with our latest estimate being up to 430 mmbo {26 mmbo net)
recoverable for both the Maureen and Heimdal reservorrs

The operator has screened a number of different development
concepis The preferred concept of a sieel jacket (PDUQ) with
a single dnlling ng, floating storage and cil transportation by
shuttle tanker has been agreed A contract for pre-Frent End
Engineering and Design (FEED) studies has been awarded
This will be followed by FEED and an Environmental Impact
Assessment (EIA) which will be completed in 2012 Project
sanchion by the field partners and FDP submission is
scheduled for Q4 2012 wth first od expected n 2016

In November 2010, the Company completed the sale to Statoil of
a 20 6667% interest in Mariner for total consideration of £87 5m
Additionally Statoll will provide a maximum £3 Om carry of the
Company’s cost through to final investment decision
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Ketos

{Licence P1759 — 100% operated interest)
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Ketos offers a substantial upside to the

proven Kraken discovery in a 100%

Nautical block. The oil and the reservoir
quality are proven by the 9/02b-2 well.

Key stats

» Probable extension of Heimdal | ol bearing
reservoir encountered by well 9/02b-2

» Best estimate contingent resources
of 55 mmbo {net)

» Best estimate prospective resources
of 34 mmbo (net)

» High tech 3D seismic survey has been
acquired over Block 9/1a as part of the
Kraken survey (the first 3D over the area)

» Well planned for 2012 dependent on the
results of new 3D seismic

Block 9/1a (Licence P1759)

(Nautical 100% Operator)

Block 9/1a 1s immaediately to the west of the Kraken block 9/2b

It was acquired by Nautical with a 100% interest in the 26th
Seaward Licencing Round Ketos contains ol in the Haimdal |
raservorr and Is stratigraphically separate from the Hemdal Il
Kraken fisld The Ketos discovery well 8/02b-2 encountered 38
feet of net oll bearing sand in the Ha:imdal | reservoir Existing 2D
seismic over Block 9/1a shows amplitudes similar to those seen
in the 3D data over Block 9/2b This indicates that Haimdal |
reservorr extends into Block 9/1a and thus Ketos could be a
substantial accumulation New 3D seismic was acquired over the
block as part of the Kraken area survey this summaer and this will
be processed and interpreted to further define Ketos Depandent
on the results of the interpretation, a we!ll will be drilled n 2012
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Tudor Rose

{Licence P1463 - 20% interest}

Tudor Rose is an undeveloped oil

discovery with an appraisal well to be

drilled in Q4 2011.

Key stats

» Contains undeveloped Tudor Rose discovery
and Buffalo prospect

» Well will be dnlled in Q4 2011

» Best estimate contingent resources of
49 mmbo (gross), 10 mmbo (net), with
prospective resources upside of 84 mmbo
(gross), 17 mmbo {net)

Block 14/30a {Licence P1463)

{Nautical 20%)

Located in the Quter Moray Firth adjacent to ivanhos, Rob Roy
and Goldenaye Fields, this Tradtional Licence contains one
undeveloped discovery, 14/30a-2, named Tudor Rose The
discovery well encountered a 79 foot ol column beneath a

10 foot gas cap at around 3,300 feet subsea within Tertiary,
Dornoch Formation sands The western pinchout of the Dornoch
sands was confirmed by the interpratation of 208 square
kilometres of 3D seismic A deeper oll water contact (OWC)

15 Incicated on this seismic which will be investigated by the
appraisal well to be dnilled in Q4 2011 The main aim of the well
1s to callect fluid samples to determine the ARl grawty and
viscosity of the oil

Nautica! attributes 48 mmbo of gross best estimate contingent
resources (10 mmbo net) with a further 84 mmbo of gross best
astimate prospective resources In the east of the structure

(17 mmbo net} Further prospectivity i1s evidenced on the
reprocessed seismic in the Lower Cretaceous, Kopervik
Sandstone (named Butfalo) which 1s along trend from the
recently discovered West Rochelle Field in Block 15/27
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Spaniards

{Licences P1655 ~ 21% interest)

Large Jurassic prospect downdip
from 15/21a-38 oil discovery to be
drilled in 2012.

Key stats

» Reprocessed 3D seismic defines large
Jurassic prospect downdip from 15/21a-38
ol discovery

» Seismic indicates reservorr thickens downdip
and significant ol column impled from
pressure data in discovery well

» Part of adjacent 15/21a block has been
merged into P1655 and cost sharing
agreement reached with enlarged Joint
Venture grouping

» Best estimate prospective resources
100 mmbo (gross), 21 mmbo (het)

Nautical Petroleum plc
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Block 15/21g (Licence P1655}

(Nautical 21%)

Situated in the Witch Ground Graben in the Outer Moray
Firth, Block 15/21g 1s immediately west of the Scott Field and
contains the large Spaniards Jurasstc prospect downdip from
the 15/21-38 well which tested 2,660 bopd of 25° API all from
the Galley Sandstone

Seismic ampltude mapping indicates the reservorr thickens
downdip both to the north-east and north-west of the discovery
well Further pressure analysis from the well suggests the
potential for a long ol column Additional prospectivity has been
mapped in the Dirk Sand (Ryazaran to Upper Volgian age) which
1s derived off the Halibut Horst and deposited as a sand apron

to the north, pinching out to the east

A cost shanng agreement has been reached with the enlarged

Joint Venture group Planning 1s under way to drill a well in
Q2 2012
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Merrow

[Licence P1475 - 50% operated interest)

The Joint Venture is progressing

planning permission for an onshore

location from which to drill a directional
well offshore to test the Merrow prospect

in 2012.

Key stats

» large gas prospect in East Insh Sea basin

» Planned 2012 well 1o be driled from
onshore location

» Best estimate prospective resources 280 bcf
(gross), 145 bef (net)

Blocks 113/29c and 113/30 (Licence P1475)

(Nautical 50% Operator)

Blocks 113/19¢ and 113/30, Traditional Licence awarded in the
24th Seaward Licensing Round in 2007, are located in the East
Insh Sea basin adjacent to Walney Island on the Cumbran coast
Offshore the basin 1s essentially gas prospective although ot
shows have been encountered in early onshore wells and
commercial oil 1s discoverad further south, for instance at the
Lennox Field, offshore Southport Immedsiatsly to the west are
the Ormonde North and South discoveries in the Triassic
Ormskirk Sandstone and further to the west at the 113/27-2
well, the deeper Permian Collyhurst Sandstone has tested

gas at productive rates Onshore the Collyhurst Sandstone

1$ the productive reservorr at the Elswick Field some 35km

to the south-east near Blackpool

The primary prospect in Block 113/29¢, which has resuited
from the interpretation of over 700km of reprocessed offshore,
transition zone and onshore seismic, comprises a dual prospect
target, a large Coliyhurst Sandstone structure overlain by a
smaller Ormskirk Sandstone structure Regional geoclogical
studies combined with gravity, magnstics and outcrop data
indicates that the deeper Collyhurst reservorr hes in an optimal
area for the deposition of asolian sands which would exhibit
better reservor qualities than seen slsewhere in the basin Gross
best estmate prospective resourcas for Merrow with an aeolan
reservair are estimated at 290 bct (145 bet net)

To take advantage of much cheaper onshore driling costs, a
coastal site has been identified from which to dnll a deviated

well to target the Collyhurst prospect and planning 1s in progress
An onshore icence 15 required to dnkf the well and dslays in the
Licensing Round mean that driling has been delayed untl 2012
DECC have granted an extension of Licence P1475 to enable the
well to be drilled For well design reasons, an onshore well does
not allow the testing of the shallower Merrow Ormskirk structure
at an optimum location, but subject io1ts findings there are a
number of other Ormskirk leads on the blocks to be reviewed,
such as Sea Serpent, a prospect in Block 113/30
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Northern Ireland, Onshore

(Licence PL1/10 - 20% interest)

The Larne/Lough Neagh licence, PL1/10,
contains a largely unexplored Triassic
basin analogous to the East Irish Sea.

Key stats

» Licence PL1/10 covers an area of over
660 sg km northwest of Belfast

» Regronal onshore 2D Vibroseis survey
of up to 276km being acquired

PL1/10 Larne/Lough Neagh

{(Nautical 20%)

The Larne/Lough Neagh basinis underexplored in onsheore terms
but it appears to contan all the prospective elements to warrant
further exploration of this large Permo-Triassic basin Gravity

and magnetic studies have given credence to the possibility of
encountering structural complexes which ara similar to the

prolific East Insh Sea basin

As an initial step in the exploraton campaign a 275km ragional
2D Vibroseis survey, the first ever acquired in the area,
commenced in September 2011 and this will form the basis
for understanding of the hydrocarbon potential of the basin
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Keddington

(Licence PEDLOOS5 -~ 10% interest)

Keddington is a small producing field
with the potential to increase revenue

by gas utilisation.

Key stats

» K-4z horizontal sidetrack drilled in 2011
encountered 807 feet of hydrocarbon
bearing reservoir

» Currently producing approximately 130 bopd
{gross), constrained by gas flanng

» Operator investigating options to generate
electricity from the produced gas which will
allow higher production rates

Licence PEDLOOS

(Nautical 10%%)

Nautical through ts whaolly owned subsidiary Alba Resources
Limited, acquired a 10% interest in Onshore Licence PEDLOOS
(Remainder) which contains the producing Keddington oil field
and North Somercotes gas prospect, both adjacent to the
Saltflestby gas field

The Keddington-4z well was drilled as a re-entry and horizontal
sidetrack from the Keddington-1z “donor” well, dunng Aprnil 2011
and encountered a total of 384 fest of the pnimary reservorr

Unit 1 Sandstone and 213 feet of Unit 2 The well 1s now on
preduction alongside the Keddington-3z well with an average
total field production of around 130 bopd

The field 1s also producing sigrificant quantities of gas with the
average daily rate of approximately 500,000 cubic feet The high
gas rates are constraining the ol production and the operator 1s
nvestigating options to generate electricity which will utiise the
produced gas and allow higher ol production
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(22% interest)
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The St Laurent Permit contains a large

gas prospect with 3TCF gross best

estimate prospective resources.

St Laurent key stats

» Large subsalt gas prospect in the Triassic
Bunter Sandstone under the Audignon Ridge

» Best estimate prospective resources of 3TCF
(gross), 660 bef (net)

» Grenade heavy ol accumulation with
4 2 mmbo gross best estimate contingent
resources

St Laurent Permit

(Nautical 22%)

The Sant Laurent Permit in south-west France contains

several large hydrocarbon exploration plays and the undeveloped
Grenade heavy ol accumulation The discovery well, Grenade-
Sur-Adour-1 was dnlled by SNEAP (EIf) in 1975 and encountered
a 318 foot ol column of 10° APl all in Cretaceous Albian
carbonates Betweesn 1976 and 1985 around 8,000 barrels

of all were recovered from intermittent tests, the well being
finally plugged and abandoned durnng a perad of low ol

prices in 1985

The Grenade 3 appraisal well drilled in 2008 did not encounter
hydrocarpons Studies have focused on determining the extent
of this accumulation and whether to sidetrack or abandon the
GAR-3 well However, the current focus of wark 1s on the larger
Audignon Ridge gas prospect

Degeper in the geological section to the south-west the Joint
Venture has reprocessed 2D seismic data and successiully
delineated a large subsalt gas prospect in the Tnassic Bunter
Sandstone under the Audignen Ridge The operator estmates
best net prospective resources of 3TCF {660 bef net to Nautical)
A farmin agreement 1s currently being negotiated, prior to
acquinng further seismic to de-nisk the prospect
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Financial strength

Will Mathers
Finance Director

Nautical’s financial position has
strengthened significantly during
the year ended 30 June 2011.

Nautical’s financial position has strengthened significantly during
the year ended 30 June 2011 Operational success at Catcher

in June 2010 lad the foundation for a private placing in August
2010, which raised net proceeds of £28 9m and significantly
improved the Company’s shareholder register This was followsd
by the partial sale of Mariner, completed in November 2010,
which resulted in proceeds of £87 5m Against the backdrop of
a turbulent year in the caprtal markets, these transactions have
ensured that the Group 1s well funded and remains debt free

We completed the year with £110 Om in cash and deposits Qur
strong cash position ensures that Nautical 1s sufficiently funded
to execute its planned exploration and appraisal programme
beyond 2012 and provides a solid financial foundation as we
progress Kraken, Catcher and Mariner towards Field
Development Plan (FDP) approvals

Results

The Group made a profit after taxation for the year of £50 6m
(2010 £2 3m loss), including a £55 1m gain on the partial sale of
Mariner, partially offset by exploration write-offs of £0 4m (2010
£0 2m), pre-icence expenditure of £0 4m (2010 £0 4m) and an
impairment charge of £0 9m, related to the Grenade field {located
on the St Laurent permit in France}

Revenue of £177k receved during the year was attnbutable to
the onshore Keddington field, which remains Nautical's only
production Interest iIncome increased from the prior year to
£09m (2010 £0 3m), reflecting the enhanced cash resources
of the Group

Administration expenses of £4 4m {2010 £1 6m) included £3 7Ym
of staff costs (2010 £11m) Of this non-cash charges of £1 3m
{2010 £0 1m) related to share ophons 1ssued to Directors and
employees The taxation gan of £0 8m (2010 £0 2m gain) has
ansen from movements on the deferred tax hability, pnmarily
due to changes in tax rates

Statement of financial position

As at 30 June 2011, the Group had net assets of £137 9m (2010
£577m}), dominated by capitalised exploration and evaluation
assets of £48 Om (2010 £55 3m) and cash and deposits of
£130 0m (2010 £11 7m), of which £17 2m was restncted for
Kraken driling operations
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The exploration and evaluation assets of £48 0m included
capitalised costs of £29 4m for Kraken (2010 £20 3m) and
£8 6 for Catcher (2010 £2 2m)

Cash flow

In addition to £3 4m net opsrating expenses, the Group incurred
expenditure of £11 3m (2010 £6 6m) on its exploration and
evaluation assets during the year, including £0 9m on Kraken,

£6 4m on Catcher, £2 1m on Mariner and £1 9m on the remaining
portfolio An addibonal £7 Om was incurred in May 2011 acquinng
a further 15% interest in Kraken from Canamens Enargy North
Sea Limited, taking Nautical’s equity interest in Block 9/2b from
35% to 50%

In addition to normal operating and investing activity, two
transactions significantly strengthened the cash position
of the Group

In August 2010, Nautical completed a placing of 24,280,000 new
ordinary shares at a price of 125 pence per share to raise gross
proceeds of £30 3m (£28 9m net of expenses) The price of 125
pence represented a 12 6% discount to the closing price of the
shares upon the announcement of the placing

In September 2010, the Company signed a Sale and Purchase
Agreement with Statoil for the sale of a 20 6667% Interest and
associated nghts in Marner, reducing Nautical's equity interest in
Mariner to 6 0% Upon completion in November 2010, proceeds
of £87 5m were received As a result, the book value of Marner
was reduced to £0 7m at 30 June 2011 {2010 £311m)

Taxation

The gain on the partial sale of Mariner 1s not expected to be
subject to tax as it qualifies for reinvestment relief The relief
apples provided that the proceeds are either expended on
qualfying UK Qil & Gas assets or spent acquinng UK Ol &
Gas assets In the period between one year before the disposal
and three years after

In March 2011, the Government announced an increass in the
Supplementary Corporation Tax (SCT) from 20% to 32% This
unexpected Increase means that production from Nautical's
UKCS fields will be subject to a taxation rate of 62%
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A consequence of Nautical's commercial success to date I1s
that we do not have tax losses to indefinitely shelter us from
this iIncrease We ara, howeaver, pleased that the Government
15 showing a willngness to engage with the industry regarding
these matiers, as evidenced by the recent increase in the Ring
Fenced Expenditure Supplement (RFES) from 6% to 10%

One positive aspect of the ingrease in the SCT 1s that it improves
the value of the Heavy Ol Field Allowance of £800m per field, for
which both Kraken and Mariner qualify Upcn production, both
fields will now receive gross tax relief of up to £256m (previously
£160m)

Funding and outlook

The transition of the Group's assets into the development phase
dspends not only on continued technical success, but also on
the ability of the Group to obtain financing prior to Field
Development Plan approvals

Consequently, the strength of capital markets and the continued
avallability of reserve based lending finance for development
projects remains cntical to Nautical's ability to successfully
execute its plans The avalabiity of such funding will continue

to be influenced by macro-economic events, including ol price
fluctuattons, the overall state of the economy and the strength
of the banking sector, all of which remamn outside the control

of Nautical

Whilst the current global economic and banking environment 1s
fragile, our key projects are economically robust and we remain
confident of our ability to take our key projects to FDP approval
With our strong cash position and sound asset base Nautical
1s well placed to meet the challenges ahead

Will Mathers
Finance Director
14 Qctober 2011
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1 Patnck Kennedy

Non-Executive Director and Chairman

Patrick 1s a Chartered Accountant with bachelors and masters
degrees in Economics and has over 20 years' experience in
business development and strategy, working with high net worth
ndwviduals and corporate leaders in the UK and overseas He s
CEO of the PK Group, the London based financial services group
and serves on the boards of both pnivate and public companies

A Director since 30 May 2002, Patrick 1s Chairman of Nautical's
Audit Committee

2. Steve Jenkins

Chief Executive Officer

As part of a 29 year career in oll and gas, Stave spent the

11 years prior to Nautical at Nimir Petroteum as business
development and HSE manager, where he was responsible

for acquisiton strategy and technical dimensions of strategic
planning He successfully led mult-disciplinary teams to evaluate
opportunities in the Americas, the Middle East, North Africa,

and other OECD countries, which led to the acquisition and
subsequent turnaround of a Venezuelan oll producing field

Steve alsc managed a driling programme that resulted in the
quadrupling of production in a field on Sakhalin Island in the
Russian Federation and identified and secured a farmout with
a major cil company for a substantal carry on a large ollfield
n Kazakhstan

Steve has an MSc in Petroleurn Geology and DIC from Impenal
Gollege of Science and Technology, the University of London,

a BSc Hons in Geology from the Queen's University, Belfast and
15 a Fellow of the Geological Society of London He i1s currently
Chairman of the Oif & Gas Independents Association {OGIA),
and a director of Oil & Gas UK
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3 Paul Jennings

Commercial Director

Paul's experience In the ol and gas sector exceeds 30 years and
spans the roles of accountant, economist and commercial and
business development director

Paul worked with BP for 17 years, with responsibility for projects
in China, Russia, Mongolia, Mozambigue and West Africa

After leaving BP, Paul established exploration and production
companies In both Russia and Nigeria, before joinily founding
Nautical with Steve Jenkins

4 Will Mathers

Finance Director

Will1s a Chartered Accountant, qualifying with Deloitte Touche
Tohrnatsu in Austrahia and holding a bachelors degree from

the University of Western Australa Following 6 years in
professicnal practice, where he specialised in the energy and
mining sectors, Will held financial roles with Woodside Petroleumn
Limited, working in both the USA and Australia

On relocation to the UK, ha worked for the Royal Dutch/Shell
Group In the position of global office controlier for Shell Gas
(LPG) n London Will was appointed CFO of Nautical n
Qctober 2008

5 Philip Dimmock

Non-Executive Director

Philip has over 30 years' experience in upstream oil and gas,
both in the UK and internationally and 1s currently chief operating
officer of Equator Exploration Ltd

Phillp spent a signdicant part of his career at BP in 2 wide variety
of sermor positions, and at Ranger ol where he held the post of
vice president of the international division, and served as
charrman He has also been a executive officer of the UK
Offshore Operators Association

Philp 1s Chairman of Nautical’s Remuneration Committee
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Directors’ report

The Drrectors present their report together with the Group and Company financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2011

Business review and future activities

The principal activity of the Company 1s oil and gas exploration and evaluation in the UK and Europe, with the principal assets of the
Company moving towards field development plan submissions The Company 1s a public imited company incorporated in England

and Wales (company number 4362104} and 1s isted in Lendon on AIM under the designation NPE The Company 1s required by the
Companies Act to set out In this report & review of the business of the Group during the year end 30 Juns 2011 and the position of the
Group at the end of year and uncertainties facing the Group The informatien that fulfils these requirements, including discussion of the
business and future developments, I1s set out in the Chairman’s statement, Chief Executive's review, Operational review and the Finance
Director's review

Results and dividends
The Group's profit for the year was £50 61m (2010 loss of £2 28m), Including a gamn on the partial sale of Mariner of £55 12m The Directors
do not recommend the payment of a dividend

Directors and thewr interests
The beneficial and other interests of the Directars holding office during the year and their families in the shares of the Company
at 30 June 2011 were

Number of ordinary shares and options held

At 30 June 2011 At 30 June 2010
Ordinary Share Ordinary Share
shares options shares options
Number Number Number Number
S Jenkins {Chief Executive} 908,096 1,275,000 876,096 1,125,000
P Jennings (Commercial Director) 896,096 925,000 876,096 800,000
W Mathers (Finance Director} 20,000 300,000 NIl 200,000
J Conlin (Non-Executive Director - resigned 11 November 2010) n/a nfa Nil 60,000
P Dimmock (Non-Executive Director) 8,000 285,000 NI 250,000
P Kennedy {Non-Executive Chairman) 83,000 285,000 75,000 250,000

On 31 August 2010 the Company completed a share placing with the Directors participating as follows S Jenkins 32,000 shares,
P Jennings 20,000 shares, W Mathers 20,000 shares, J Conlin 8,000 shares, P Dimmock 8,000 shares, P Kennedy 8,000 shares

The Drrectors have been Directors throughout the year, with the exception of J Conlin, who resigned on 11 November 2010 Patrick
Kennedy was appointed Charman on 15 September 2011

S Jenkins and P Jennings hold part of their shareholding with TD Waterhouse Nominees {Europe})

Retirement and resignation of Directors

P Kennedy retires in accordance with sechon 29(1) of the Company’s Articles of Association and offers himself for re-election W Mathers
retires in accordance with section 99(2) of the Company's Articles of Association and offers himself for re-election J Confin resigned from
the Board on 11 November 2010

Directors’ third party indemniuty provisions
The Company maintains indemnity insurance for its Directors and officers against liability in respect of proceadings brought by third
parttes, subject to the terms and conditions of the Companies Act 2006

Share capnal

At 30 June 2011 87,745,179 ordinary shares of 20p each are issued and fully paid Each ordinary share carmies 1 vote On 31 August 2010
the Company completed a placing of 24,280,000 shares Details of ordinary shares issuad durning the financial year can be found in note
21 of the financial statements

Substantial shareholders
At 14 October 2011 notification had been receved by the Company of the following who had a disclosabls interest in 3% or more of the
nominal value of the ordinary share capital of the Company

Number
of shares  Percentage
Blackrock Investment Management (UK) Limited 8,882,528 1012%
Blue Gold Capital Management LLP 8,681,780 9 90%
MHR Adwisors LLC 7,096,085 8 09%
J P Morgan Asset Management Holdings Inc 5,244,265 598%

The Company has not been notified of any other person who has an interest in 3% or more in the Company’s share capital
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Emplovees

The success of the business depends upon maintaining a highly qualified and well-motivated workforce and every effort 1s made
to achieve a common awareness of the financial and economic factors affecting the performance of the Group Nautical Petroleum
ts committed to being an equal opportunity employer and plans to engage employees with broad backgrounds and skills

Nominated adwiser and broker
The Company has jont brokers, Evolution Secunties Limited and Ambnan Pariners Limited Evolution Secunities are also the Company's
Nominated Adviser

Supplier payment policy and practice

It 1s the Group’s policy to seitls the terms of payment with suppliers when agreeing the terms of the transaction, to ensure that suppliers
ars aware of these terms and to abide by them Trade creditors at 30 June 2011 amount to 74 days of purchases made in the year
{2010 13 days)

Donations
During the year the Group made chantable donations of £50 (2010 £nil) and no politica! contributions (2010 £nil)

Financial instruments

The Group’s principal financial iInstruments comprise cash balances, short-term and long-term deposits and debtors or creditors that
anse through the normal course of business as set out n note 20 of the financial statements The financial nsk managemsnt objectives
and policies are discussed In note 20 of the financial statements

Key performance indicators

The Board reviews the key performance indicators of the business and the Company's progress towards achieving its objectves on

a quarierly basis These KPIs include items such as the financial position of the business, the performance of the Company against its
peers, health and safety incidents, operational results, resources and other commercial measurements which are aimed at achteving
the Group’s strategic objectives

Principal business risks

The Directors are responsible for the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management actvities and internal control processes
As a participant in the upstream ol & gas industry, Nautical 1s exposed to a wide range of nisks in the conduct of its operations
These risks include

Financial nsks

» Cost inflation

» Ol price movements and fluctuation in discounts for heavy ol
» Adverse taxation legslative changes

= Co-venturer and third party counterparty cradit nsk

» Adverse foreign exchange movements

Cperational risks

» Loss of key employees

» Dealay and cost overrun on projects, including weather related delay
» HSE incidents

= Poor reservorr performance

» Exploration and appraisal well falures

Failure of third party services

¥

Strategic and external nisks

» Future deterioration of capital markets, inhibiting efficient equity and/or debt raising for developments
» Commercial misalignment with co-venturers

» Matenal fall in ol price

The rnisks set out are not exhaustive and additional risks and uncertainties may arise or become matenal in the future Any of the nisks,
as well as other nsks and uncertainties discussed in this document, could have a matenal adverse effect on our business

Therse 15 no absolute assurancs that the Group's exploration and development activiies will be successful The Group's activitties may
also be curtalled, delayed or cancelled not cnly as a result of adverse weather conditions but also as a result of shortage or delays in the
delivery of driling ngs and other equipment which, at times, are in short supply The Group seeks to manage these risks through portfolio
management, balancing nsk across a range of prospects and leads, which carry varying tachnical and commercial nisks, and carefully
managing the financial exposure to each asset in the portfolio through the arrangements set out with joint venture partners

The Group competes with other E&P companies, some of whom have much greater financial resources, for the identification and
acquisition of oil and gas licences and properties and also for the recrutment and retention of skilled personnal
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Directors’ report continued

The market price of hydrocarbon products 15 volatie and 18 not within the control of the Group If significant declines occur in the price
of oll, or detnmental changes occur to the UK fiscal regime, the economic commerciality of the Group’s projects can be significantly
reduced or rendered unecanomic

The successful progression of the Group's ol and gas assets depends not only on technical success, but also on the ability of the Group
10 obtan appropriate financing through equity financing, debt financing, farm downs or other means The availability of such funding will
continue to ba influenced by macroeconormic events, including oll price fluctuations and the overall state of the economy, both of which
remain putside the control of the Group There I1s no assurance that the Group will be successful In obtaining required financing going
forward If the Group 1s unable to obtan additional financing needed to fulfil its planned work programmes some interests may be
ralinguished and/or the scope of the operations reduced

Going concern

Following the Board's review of the Group's financial position and forward cash forecasts, the Directors are of the view that the Group
has adequate financial resources to continue its operational actitias and meet its llabilities as and when thay fall due for the foreseeable
future and for a penod of at least 12 months from the date of authonsation of these financial statements For this reason the financial
statements are prepared on a going concern basis

Board Committees
Information on the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee is included in the Corporate Governance sechon of the Annual
Report The report of the Remuneration Committee will be the subject of an ordinary resclution at the Annual General Meeting

Disclosure of nformation to the auditors

Having made enquines of fellow Directors and of the Company’s auditors, each of the Directors confirms that, to the best of each
Director's knowledge and belief, there s no information relevant to the preparation of their report of which the Company's audiors are
unaware, and each Director has taken all the steps a Director might reasonably be expected to have taken to be aware of the relevant
audit nformaton and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information This confirmation 1s given, and should
be interpreted, in accordance with the provisions of $418 of the Companies Act 2006

Auditors
A resolution to reappoint Ernst & Young LLP as auditors will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting at a fee
to be agreed in due course by the Audit Committee and the Directors

Annual General Meeting
The Annual General Meeting will be held on 18 Navember 2011 as stated in the Notice of Meeting, which accompanies this
Annual Report

On behalf of the Board
Stephen Jenkins

Director
14 October 2011
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Remuneration report

Directors' emoluments

The Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors 1s responsible for determining and reviewing compensation arrangements for
all Executive Directors The Remuneration Committee assesses the appropriateneass of the nature and amount of emoluments of such
officers on a penodic basis by referance to ralavant employment market conditions with iha overall objective of ensuring maximum
stakeholder benefit from the retention of a high quality Board and executive team

TJo achieve these objectives, the Remuneration Committee inks the nature and amount of Executive Diractors’ and officers’ emolumeants to
the Company's financial and operational performance Every year, an Industry survey of remuneration levels 1s used, firstly, to benchmark
job content and, secondly, to set a base salary at the median lavel The remaning remuneration 1s dependeant on the performance of the
Company and the indwidual The performance of both the Company and the individual 1s measured agamst Key Performance Indicators
which are set at the beginning of the financial year The score against KPl's 1s used to award a cash bonus as a percentage of base salary
A perfect performance would generate a bonus of 100% A long-term benefit, lughty geared to share price performance and hence
shareholder value, 1s awarded each year in the form of stock options Nautical has adopted a policy of awarding the options at the same
time each year so that any vagaries in the share price will even out in the long run

Executive Directors emoluments consist of salary, pension, annual bonus, a discretionary bonus and discretionary share opttons Detatls
of the nature and amount of each element of the emoluments of each Director of the Company for the previous 12 months are as follows

Annual Special Total Total

Salary Feeas Bonus Bonus Pension 2011 2010

Name £ 000 £'000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000
S Jenkins 245 - 193 180 3 649 300
P Jenmings 192 - 134 180 6 512 175
W Mathers 142 - 110 85 i8 355 194
J Conlin —resigned on 11 November 2010 - 28 50 - - 78 45
P Dimmock - 43 - - - 43 30
P Kennedy - 49 - - - 49 30
Total 579 120 487 445 85 1,686 774

On 3 November 2010, the Company completed the sale of a 20 6667% mterest in Licence P335, Block 9/11a which contains the Mariner
discovery and associated rights to Statoll (UK) Limited for sale proceeds of £87 5 million, resulting n a profit to the Company of £5513
milion In addition, operational success was achieved with the discoveries at Catcher and with the successful appraisal wells in Kraken
This combination created a step change for the Company, transforming it from a microcap to 2 midcap In recognition of the contnbution
to the step change mads by the Executive Directors and other employees, the Remuneration Comrnittes awarded a special bonus of
£547k to employees of which €445k was paid to the Executive Directors

S Jenkins has eniered into a loan agreement with the Company for £4,180 with an outstanding balance due to the Company at
30 June 2011 of £1,742 (2010 £1,750}

The pension 1s a defined coniribution scheme
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Remuneration report continued

Share options granted to Directors

Opbons Opuons Options Options Options Exercise

held at granted axarcised lapsed held at price Issue Expiry
Nams June 2010 wn ysar W year m yaar June 2011 (s} date date
S Jenkins 250,000 - - - 250,000 8000 07/03/05 07/03/13
300,000 - - - 300,000 22000 26/09/05 26/09/13
125,000 - - - 125,000 177 00 18/01/07 18/01/15
150,000 - - - 150,000 21100 18/01/08 18/01/16
150,000 - - - 150,000 2675 12/01/09 12/01/17
150,000 - - - 150,000 57 50 13/01/10 13/01/18
- 150,000 - - 150,000 43300 10/01/11 10/01/19

1,125,000 150,000 = - 1,275,000
P Jennings 200,000 - - - 200,000 8000 07/03/05 07/03/13
200,000 - - - 200,000 22000 26/09/05 26/09/13
75,000 - - - 75,000 177 00 18/01/07 18/01/15
100,000 - - - 100,000 21100 18/01/08 18/01/16
125,000 - - - 125,000 2675 12/01/08 12/01/17
100,000 — - - 100,000 57 50 13/01/10 13/01/18
- 125,000 = - 125000 43300 10/01/11 10/01/19

800,000 125,000 = - 925,000
W Mathers 100,000 - - - 100,000 3617 13/11/08 13/11/16
100,000 - - - 100,000 57 50 13/01/10 13/01/18
- 100,000 - - 100000 43300 10/01/11 10/01/189

200,000 100,000 - - 300.000
J Conlin - resigned 11 November 2010 30,000 - (22,500) (7,500} - 57 10 24/06/09 rva
30,000 ~  {15,000) (15,000} - 57 50 13/01/10 na

60,000 - (37.500) (22.500) -
P Dimmock 75,000 - - - 75,000 8000 07/03/05 07/03/13
75,000 - - - 75,000 22000 26/09/05 26/09/13
25,000 - - - 25,000 177 00 18/01/07 18/01/15
25,000 - - - 25,000 21100 18/01/08 18/01/16
25,000 - - - 25,000 2675 12/01/09 12/01/17
25,000 - - - 25,000 5750 13/01/10 13/01/18
- 35,000 - - 35,000 43300 10/01/11 10/01/19

250,000 35,000 - - 285000
P Kennedy 75,000 - - - 75,000 8000 07/03/05 07/03/13
75,000 - - - 75,000 22000 26/09/05 26/09/13
25,000 - - - 25,000 177 00 18/01/07 18/01/15
25,000 - - - 25,000 21100 18/01/08 18/01/16
25,000 - - - 25,000 2675 12/01/08 12/01/17
25,000 - - - 25,000 57 50 13/01/10 13/01/18
= 35,000 — - 35,000 43300 10/01/11 10/01/19

250,000 35,000 - - 285000

Total 2,685,000 445000 (37,500) (22,500) 3,070,000

The options were all granted under the Nautical share option scheme rules, whereby from the date of 1ssue 25% are exercisable after

6 months, 25% after 12 months, 25% after 18 months and 25% after 24 months The options must be exercised withun 8 years of 1ssue
Following resignation no further options can vest and there 1s a penod of up to one year to exercise options which have already vested
after whuch they lapse The exercise price (s the highest of either the nominal value of the shares (20p), the average price for the 30 days
preceding grant date or the price on grant date

Philip Dimmock
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
14 October 2011

P A
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Corporate governance

As the Company I1s listed on the Alternative Investment Market (AIM) of the London Stock Exchange, 1t 1s not required to comply with the
provisions of the Combined Code However, the Board 1s committed to the high standards of good corporate governance embodied in
the Combined Code on Corperate Governance and seeks to apply the principles cf the Combined Code where practicable for a
company of Nautical's size and complexity

Board of Directors
The Board 15 responsible for the direction and overall performance of the Group with emphasis on policy and strategy, financial results
and major operational 1Issues

The Code recommends that smaller companies should have at least 2 Non-Executive Directors The Board comprises 3 Executive and
2 Non-Executive Directors, one of whom i1s the Chairman, who are ndependent of management and do not participate in the Group's
bonus or pension schemes although the Non-Executive Directors have share options and are shareholders

The roles of the Charrman and Chief Executive are separate, thus ensuning a division of responsibility at the head of the Group
The current Executive Directors are all employed under service contracts with the Company

All Directors are subject to re-election by shareholders every 3 years and, on appointment, at the first Annual General Meeting after
appointment Apprepnate directors and officers’ hability insurance has been arranged by the Company

Meetings of the Board of Drrectors
The Board meets at least 4 times a year after all relevant information has been circulated in good time, to discuss a forma! scheduled
agenda covering key areas of the Group's affarrs including operational and financial performance

All members of the Board are expected to attend Board Meetings which are scheduled in advance There was 95% attendance at all
meetings throughout the year

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee 1s chaired by P Kennedy and its other member 1s P Dimmock Executive Directors may attend by invitation
The minutes of every meeting are taken by the Company Secretary and circulated to the Board at the next Board Meeting at which
the Chairman provides a verbal report of meetings of the Committee

The Audit Commitiee, which meets at least twice a year, 1s responsible for keeping under review the scope and results of the audit,
its cost effectiveness and the independence and objectivity of the auditors It also has oversight responsibility for public reporting and
the Company's intarnal controls

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee 1s chaired by P Dimmock and its other member s P Kennedy The minutes of every meeting are taken
by the Company Secretary and circulated to the Board at the next Board Meeting at which the Chairman provides a verbal report of
meetings of the Committee

The Remuneraticn Committee, which meets at least twice a year, 1s responsible for considering the remuneration packages for Executive
Directors and the bonus and share option strategy for the Group and making recommendations as appropriate

The Remuneration Committee 1s also respensible for reviewing the performance of the Executive Dhrectors and ensuring that they are
farrly and responsibly rewarded for therr ndividuat contnbutions to the Group’s overall performance The Committee’s scope extends

to all remuneration of the Executive Directors including bonus and share options None of the Cormmittee has any day-to-day involvement
in running the Company

Nominations Committee

The Nominations Committee currently comprises S Jenking, P Dimmock and P Kennedy It reviews and recommends to the Board the
appointment of Directors and 15 charged with ensunng the necessary balance of skills, knowledge and experience 1s maintained and
represented on the Board The Nominations Commuttee considers that the current composition of the Board 1s satistactory to provide
the appropnate governance, administration and business counsel in respect of the Company's affars
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Corporate governance continued

Relations with shareholders

Communication with shareholders 1s given high priority Extensive information about the Group's activities 1s provided m the Annual
Reports and Accounts and the Intenm Report, which is sent to all shareholders There Is regular dialogus with institutional investors

as well as presentations to analysts at the time of the release of the annual and intenm rasults The Company maintains a website

(www nauticalpetroleum com) for the purpose of impraving information flow to shareholders as well as petential investors The website
contains all press announcements and financial reports as well as extensive operational information about the Group’s activities and
enquines from indmvdual shareholders on matters relatng to ther shareholdings and the business of the Group are welcomed The Board
encourages shareholders to attend the Annual General Meeting, at which members of the Board are avallable to answer questions

Internal controls

The Board ts responsibie for the effectivenass of the Group's internal controls and 1s supphed with information to enable it to discharge

its duties Internal control systems are designed to meet the particular needs of the Group and to manage rather than eliminate the risk
of failure to meet business objectives The internal controts cover financial, eperational and comphance matters and are reviewed on

an ongoing basis The Group's internal controls can only prowide reasonable and not absolute assurance aganst material misstatement
or loss or the risk of fallure to meset business objectives
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Directors’ responsibilities for the financial statements

Group financial statements
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ Report and the Group financial statements in accordance with applicable
United Kingdom law and those International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union

Under company law the Diractors must not approve the Group financial statements unless they are satisfied that they present fairty the
financial position of the Group and the financial performance and cash flows of the Group for that penod In prepanng these financial
statements, the Directors are required o

» select suitable accounting policies in accordance with IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estmates and Errors

and then apply them consistently,

present nformation, ncluding accounting policies, in a mannsr that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable
information,

provide addiional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs’ 1s insufficient to enable users to understand
the mpact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the Group's financial position and financial performance,

state that the Group has complied with IFRSs’, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explaned in the financial
statements, and

= make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent

¥

The Directors are responsible for keeping adeguate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group’s transactions
and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any tme the financial position of the Group and enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Comparues Act 2006 They are also respensible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and hence

for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other rregularities

The Directors are responstble for the maintenance and integnty of the corporate and financial Information included on the Company's
website Legistation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation
N other junsdictions
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Independent auditors’ report
to the members of Nautical Petroleum plc

We have audited the Group financial statements of Nautical Petroleumn ple for the year ended 30 June 2011 which comprise the
Consoldated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, the Consolidated Statement of
Changes In Equity and the Siatement of Cash Flows and the related notes 1 to 28 The financial reporting framework that has been
apphed in ther preparation i1s applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union

This report 1s made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with chapter 3 of part 16 of the Companies Act 2008
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those matters we are required to state to them in
an auditors’ report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitied by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the Company and the Company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the optnions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors

As explainad more fully In the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 33, the Directors are responsible for the preparation
of the Group financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an
opirion on the Group financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)
Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practice Board's Ethucal Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable

assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an

assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the group's circumstances and have been conststently applied '
and adequately disclesed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation l
of the financial statements In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the annual report to identify matenal

nconsistencies with the audited financial statements It we become aware of any apparent material misstaterments or Inconsistencies

we consider the mplications for our report .

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the group financial statements

» gve atrue and far view of the state of the group’s affairs as at 30 June 2011 and of its profit for the year then ended,
» have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, and

» have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opiion the information given in the Directors® Report for the financal year for which the group financtal statements are prepared
1s consistent with the group financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, n our opinion
» certan disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

» we have not receved all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Other matter
We have reported separately on the Parant company financial statements of Nautical Petroleum ple for the year ended 30 Jung 2011

Kevin Weston (Semor statutory auditor)

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
Aberdeen

14 October 2011
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 30 June 2011

2011 2010
Notes £'000 £ 000
Revenue 3 177 68
Cost of sales (99) {84)
Gross profit/{loss) 78 {16)
Exploration and evaluation expense 4 (761) 663)
Imparment 4 (902) -
Administrative expenses (4,405) (1,602}
Foreign exchange gain/{loss) 155 (132)
Operating loss 4 {5,835) (2,413)
Gam on sale of intangible exploration and evaluation assets 5 65,125 -
Finance ncome 10 947 309
Finance costs 10 (247} {371)
Profit/{loss) before tax 49,990 (2,475)
Tax 117 615 194
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive income for the year 50,605 (2,281)
Attributable to
Equity holders of the Company 50,605 (2,281)
Earnmings/{loss) per ordinary share (pence}*
Basic 12 60.55 (3 60)
Diluted 12 59.47 {3 60)

The results above were entirely derived from continuing operations
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Consolidated statement of financial position

As at 30 June 2011
At At
30 June 30 June
2011 2010
Notes £'000 £ 000
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 13 47,958 55,258
Property, plant and equipment 13 764 353
48,722 55,611
Current assets
Trade and other recevables 14 1,351 808
Cash and cash equivalents 15 52,859 8,730
Short-term deposits 15 57,115 3,000
111,325 12,538
Total assets 160,047 68,149
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 6 (13,254) (883)
Non-current habilities
Deferred tax 17 (4,895) (5,488)
Provisions 18 (4,008) 4,103)
(8,903) (9,591)
Total habilities (22,157) (10,474)
Net assets 137,890 57,675
Equity attributable to equity holders
Called up share capital 21 16,455 11,588
Share premium 61,785 37,748
Other reserves 22 29,169 29,169
Cumulative translation reserve {1,659} (1,659)
Retained earnings 32,140 (19,171}
Total equity 137,890 57,675

The financial statements were approved by the Board on 14 October 2011 and were signed on 1ts behalf by

S Jenkins W Mathers

Chief Executive anW
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 30 June 2011

Cumtative

Share Share Other  translation Retained Total

capital premium reserves reserve earnings equity

£ 000 £ 000 £'000 £'000 £ 000 £ 000

At 1 July 2009 11,588 37,748 29,169 (1,669) (17,035 59811
Loss for the year - - — — {2,281) {2,281}
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - {2,281) {2,281)
Share-based payments - - - - 145 145
At 30 June 2010 11,588 37,748 29,169 (1,669) (19,171) 57,675
Profit for the year - - - - 50,605 50,605
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 50,605 50,605
Share-based payments - - - - 706 706
New shares 1ssued 4,867 25,683 - -~ - 30,450
Costs associated with 1ssuance of new shares - {1,548) — - - (1,5486)

At 30 June 2011 16,455 61,785 29169  {1,659) 32,140 137,890
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the year ended 30 June 2011

2011 2010
Notes £'000 £ 000
Net cash outflow from operating activities 23 (3,448) (1,720
Cash flows from investing activities
Finance income 286 209
Proceeds cn sale of intangible explorat:on and evaluation assets 5 87,500 -
Expenditure on office assets (399) -
Expenditure on development and production assets (108) (93)
Expenditure on intangtble assets {11,293) (6,624)
Acquisition of intangible assets {7,000) -
Increase in amounts due to JV partners 3,174 -
(increase)/decrease in cash placed on short-term deposit 24 (54,115} 13,000
Decrease In cash placed on long-term deposit - 1,000
Net cash flow from investing activities 18,745 7,492
Cash flows from financing activities
Finance expense (72) {103)
Proceeds from 1ssue of ordinary shares 21 28,904 -
Net cash flow from financing activities 28,832 {103)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 44,129 5,669
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 8,730 3,061
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 15 52,869 8,730
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Notes to the financial statements

1. Authorisation of financial statements and statement of compliance with IFRS

The Group's financial statements of Nautical Petroleum plc for the year ended 30 June 2011 were authonsed for issue by the Board of
Directors on 14 October 2011 and the statement of financial posttion was signed on the Board's behalf by Stephen Jenkins and Willlam
Mathers Nautical Petroleurn plc 1s a public imited company incerporated and dormiciled in Engtand and Wales The Company's ordinary
shares are traded on AlM on the London Stock Exchange

2 Accounting policies for the consohdated financial statements

{2 1) Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of IFRSs (international Financial
Reporting Standards) as adopted by the European Union {EU) as they apply to the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 30 June 2011, and applied in accardance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 The Group’s financial statements
are presented in sterling and all values rounded to the nearest thousand pounds (£000) except where otherwise indicated

The Board has reviewed the accounting policies set out below and considers them to be appropnate to the Group's business actvities

(2 2) Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial staterments of the Group compnse the financial statements of Nautical Petroleum plc ("Nautical™) and its
subsidianes as at 30 June 2011, including the results of the subsidianes, which are prepared for the same reporting year as the Parent
Company using consistent accounting policies

All intercompany balances, transactions, Income and expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-Group transactions are
eliminated i full Subsidianes are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control,
and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases Control 1s normally evident when Nautical, or a company which
It controls, owns more than 50% of the voting nghts of a company's share capital

Non-contraling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets not held by the Group and are presented separately in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive Income and within equity in the consolidated statement of financial posion, separately from
Parent Company's shareholders’ equity

Whare a nan-contralling interest 1s acquired, the difference between the cost of the additional interest in the subsidiary and the minority
interest's share of the assets and hablities reflected in the consolidated statement of financial position at the date of the acquisition of the
minonty interest is reflected as being a transaction between owners and the difference 1s therefore taken to equity

The Group was formed by a raverse acquisiion As such the share capital and share premium of the Group differ to that of the Parent
Company The Group share capital and share premium at the time of the reverse acquisition are those of the Company carrying out the
reverse acguisttion adjusted for the value of the acquired Company Subsequent movements are those of the acquired Company, being
the new legal Parent

{2 3) Significant accounting judgements and estimates

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management make judgements and estimates The key assumptions

concerning the future, and other sources of estmation uncertainty at the date of the statement of financial position, that have a significant

rnsk of causing a matenial adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and labilities in the financial year are as follows

= The Group makes judgements whether the exploration and evaluation assets and the development and production assets are impaired
1n accordance with policies 27 and 2 B

» The Group makes estimatas to determine the unwinding of the discount on long-term conditional payments, being the expected
timings of field development approval and first il on the Mariner field In accordance with policy 2 10

» The Group makes estimates for the inputs into the binomial mode! used to estimate the fair value and charge to mcome of share
options granted in accordance with policy 2 16

(2 4) Revenue recognition

Revenue 1s measured at the far value of the consideration received, excluding discounts, rebates, value added tax and other sales
taxes Revenue is recognised to the extent that itis prebable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenues can
be reltably measured

(2 5) Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statemants are presentad in UK sterling, which 1s the Company’s functional and presentation currency Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency As at 30 June 2011 all entities within the Group had a UK sterling functional currency Transactions in
foreign currencies are inhially recorded in the functional currency using the rate ruling at the date of the transaction Monetary assets and
labilites denomimnated n foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the date of the staterment
of financial position All differences are taken to the statement of comprehensive income
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Notes to the financial statements continued

2. Accounting policies for the consolidated financial statements continued

(2 6) Dervative income

Dervative Income arnises from Dual Currency Deposits (DCDs) which prowide an enhanced yield but also exposure to currancy
movements and as such contain an embedded dervative The income sarned 1s separated into that which could be earned on a cash
deposit of simitar matunty which is classified as interest income and the enhanced yield element which 1s classified as dervative income

(2 7) Intangible assets — exploration and evaluation assets
The Group accounts for oll and gas expenditure under the successful efforts method of accounting

Capitahsation

Certain costs {other than payments to acquire the legal night to explore) Incurred pnor to acquiring the nights to explore are charged
directly to the statement of comprehensive income  All costs incurred after the nghts to explore an area have been obtained, such as
geological and geophysical costs and other direct costs of exploration and appraisal (drihing, trenching, sampling and technical feasibility
and commercial viability activities) are accumulated and capitalised in cost centres by well, field or exploration area as appropriate and
classified as intangible exploration and evaluation (E&E) assets

E&E costs are not amortised prior to the conclusion of appraisal activities At completion of appraisal actvities, If technical feasibility s
demonstrated and commercial reserves are discovered, then, following development sanction, the carrying value of the relevant E&E
asset will be reclassified as a development and production asset, but only after the carrying value of the relevant ERE asset has been
assessed for imparrment, and where appropriate, its carrying value adjusted [f, after completion of appraisal activities in an area, 1t 1s not
possible to determing technical feasibility and commercial viability or if the legal nght to explore expires or it the Company decides not to
continue exploration and evaluation actwvity, than the costs of such unsuccessful exploration and evaluation 1s written off to the statement
of comprehensiva iIncome In the penod the relevant events occur

Impairment

If and when facts and circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an E&E asset may excead its recoverable amount an imparment
review I1s performed and If an impairment 1s established a charge 1s mads to the statement of comprehensive iIncome A key factor to
consider 18 the presence of an active work programme The quality of information avarlable to make assessments on E&E assets vanes
from Imited geological data to muitiple well and seismic data To progress with the evaluaton of an asset the Company seeks information
that will Indicate the possibility of the existence of commercial reserves This could range from promusing geological trends in the very
early stages of evaluation to well tests 1n the latter stages Where possible the Company devises estimates of potential future cash flows
1o give an indication of the present value This is comnpared to the carrying value of the asset to establish if an indication of mpairrment
exists

Acquisitions and disposals

Farmin and farmout transactions of E&E assets are accounted for at cost Costs are capitalised according to the Group’s interest, net of
prermium received or paid, as costs are iIncurred Proceeds from the disposal of an E&E assat, or part of an E&E asset, are deducted from
the caprtalised costs and the difference recognised in the statemant of comprehensive income as a gain or loss

(2 8) Property, plant and equipment

() Devetopment and production assets

Capitalisation

Development and production (D&P) assets are accumulated into single field cost centres and represent the cost of developing the
commercial reserves and bnnging them into production together with the E&E expenditures incurred In finding commercial reserves
previously transferred from E&E assets as outlined in the policy above

Depletion

Costs relating to each single field cost cenire are depleted on a unit of production method based on the commercial proven and probable
reserves for that cost centre Development assets are not depreciated until production commences The amortisation calculation takes
account of the estmated future costs of development of recogrised proven and probable reserves Changes in reserve quantiies and
cost estimates are recognised prospectively from the last reporting date

Impairment

If and when facts and circumstances indicate that the carrying value of a development or production assst may exceed its recoverable
amount, the carrying value 1s compared against the expected recoverable amount of the asset, generally by reference to the present
value of the future net cash flows expected to be derivad from production of comrmercial reserves Any impairment identified is charged to
the statement of comprehensive Income as addonzal deprecration Where conditions giving rnise to the mpairment subsequently reverse,
the effect of the imparment charge 1s also reversed as a credit to the statement of comprehensive ncome, net of any dapreciation that
would have been charged since the imparment

(n) Office assets

Ofiice assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation Depreciation 1s provided on a straight-line basis to write off the costs less
estimated residual value over the expected useful ife of the assets, which has been determined to be threg years The carrying values are
reviewed for imparment when events or circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable
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2 Accounting pchicies for the consolidated financtal statements continued

(2 9) Joint ventures

Ths Group 1s engaged in ol and gas exploration, development and production through unincorporated joint ventures The Group
accounts for its share of the results and net assets of these joint venturas as jointly controlled assets Whera Nautical acts as operator to
the joint venture, the gross liabilities, cash and recevables (including amounts due to or from non-operating partners} of the joint venturs
are included in the Group statement of financial postion

(2 10) Provisions

Provision for decommissioning

Provision for decommissioning 1s recognised in full as an asset and hability when the cbligation arises The asset is included withun
development and producthon assets The liability 1g mcluded within prowisions The amount recognised is the estimated cost of
decommussioning, discounted where appropriate to its net present value, and I1s reassessed each year in accordance with local
conditions and requirements Revisions to estimated costs of commissioring which alter the level of provisions required are also
reflected in adjustments to decommissioning asset

Conditional payments

Non-current conditional payments are measured at amorised cost using the effective intarest rate method, with the unwinding of the
discount passing though statement of comprehensive income as a finance cost At each date of the statement of financial position, the
estimates used to determine the discount period are assessed and changes made as appropriate, with the etfect of the change being
recorded in the current year

(2 11) Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalenis compnse cash-in-hand and deposiis held with banks with ornigina! maturities of 3 menths or less

Short-term deposits
Deposits held at the date of the statement of financial position with original matunities of between 3 and 12 months are classified
as short-term deposits

Trade and other receivables

Trade and cther recevables are inihally recognised at far value Fair value s considered to be the onginal invoice amount, discounted
where matenal Appropriate allowancas for estimated rrecoverable amounts are recognised in the statement of comprehensive Income
if there 1s objective evidence that the recewvable 1s mpared

Under tAS 38 all financial assets are classified as *loans and borrowings”

(2 12) Financial habilities

Trade and other payables

Current trade and other payables are initally recogrused at far value Farr value 1s considered to be the onginal invoice amount,
discounted where matenal

Al financial habilities as defined undear 1AS 39 are held at amortised cost

(2 13) Leases

Where the lessor retans substantally all the nsks and benefits of ownership the lease 1s classified as an operating lease and amounts due
are charged to the statement of comprehensive iIncome over the lease term con a straight-line basis The Company's office 1s held under
an operating lease

(2 14) Taxation

Current tax

Current tax assets and habilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxaton authorities, based
on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacled by the date of the statement of financial positicn

Deferred tax

Defarred income tax 1s recogrised on all temporary differences ansing between the tax bases of assets and liabilites and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements, with the following exceptions

» where the temporary difference anses from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or kability in a transaction that 1s not a
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit orloss,

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investment in subsidianes, associates and joint ventures, where tha timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it ts probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeables future, and

deferred Income assets are recagnised only to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profit will be avalable against which the
deductible temporary differences, carned forward tax credits or tax losses can be utilised

]
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Notes to the financial statements continued

2 Accounting policies for the consolidated financial statements continued

Deferrad income tax assets and llabilities are measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply when the
related asset 1s realised or hability 1s settled, based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the date of the statement
of financial position

The carrying amount of deferred Income tax assets 1s reviewed at each date of the statement of financial positton Deferred income
tax assets and labilities are offset, only if a tegally enforcement nght exists to set off current tax assets against current tax labilities,
the deferred income taxas relate to the same taxation authonty and that authority permits the Group to make a single net payment

Incoms tax 1s charged or credited directly to aquity if it relates to tems that are credited or charged to equity Otherwise incoma tax
15 recognised n the statement of comprehensive ncome

(2 15) Employee benefits
The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme Contnbutions payable for the year are charged to the statement
of comprehensive Income

(2 16) Share-based payments

The cost of equity-settled iransactions (share options} with employeas 1s measured by reference to the far valua at the date at which they
are granied and 1s recognised over the vesting penod as an expense to the statement of comprehensive ncome, with a corresponding
credit to equity Far value 1s determined using an appropriate pncing mode!

The Company is liable for Employer's National Insurance on the difference between the market value at date of exercise and the exercise
pnce The expense s acerued by reference to the share price of the Company at the date of the statement of financial position

(2 17) Separately disclosable items

ltems that are both matenal in size and unusual and infreguent in nature are presentad as separately disclosable items in the statement of
comprehensive iIncome or separately disclosed in the notes to the financial staternents The Directors are of the opinion that the separate
disclosure of these tems provides helpful information about the Group's undertying business performance

(2 18) Commitments and contingencies

Commitments and contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements They are disclosed unless the possibility of
an outflow of resources ambodying economic banefits 1s ramote A contingent asset I1s not recognised in the financial statements
but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits 1$ probable

(2 19) Changes in accounting palicy

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except as descnbed below The following

new and amended IFRS and IFRIC Interpretations are mandatory for penods beginning on or after 1 July 2010 unless otherwise stated
For each of the new or amended IFRS and IFRIC interpretations adopted in the penod the impact on the financial statements or
performance of the Group 1s described below

IFRS 2 Amendments to IFRS 2 — Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transactions

The amendment clarifies the accounting for Group cash-settled share-based payment transactions, where a subisiciary receives goods
or services from employees or suppliers but the Parent or another entity in the Group pays for those goods or services This amendment
did not have any impact on the financial position or performance of the Group

IAS 32 Amendments to IAS 32 Classification of Rights Issues

In October 2009, the JASB1ssued an amendment to IAS 32 on the classification of nghts 1ssues For rights 1ssues offered for a fixad
amount of foreign currency current practice appears to require such issues to be accounted for as derwvative labilities The amendment
states that if such nghts are 1ssued pro rata to an entity’s all existing shareholders in the same class for a fixed amount of currency, they
should be classified as equity regardlass of the currancy in which the exercise price 1s denominated This amendment did not have any
impact on tha financial position or performance of the Group

Improvements to IFRSs {1ssued May 2010)

In May 2010 the IASB 1ssued further amendments to 1ts standards, primarily with a view to remowving Inconsistencies and clarifying
wording There are separate transitional provisions for each amendment The adoption of amendments did not have any impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group

The following standards, amendments and interpretations to published standards are mandatory for accounting pericds beginning
on ar after 1 July 2010 but they are not relevant to the Company's operations

» |FRS 1 Amendments to IFRS1 - Additional Exemptions for First-Time Adopters

» |[FRS 1 Amendments to IFRS1 - Limited Exemption from comparatives IFRS 7 disclosures

» |IAS 32 Amendments to IAS 32 Classification of Rights Issues

» |FRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments
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2 Accounting policies for the consolidated financial statements continued

{2 20) New standards and interpretations not applied

The IASB and IFRIC have 1ssued the following standards and interpretations wrth an effective date after the commencement date of these
financial statements

New standards and interpretations not applied

International Accounting Standards (IAS/IFRS) Effective date
IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures (revised} 1 January 2011
IFRS 7 Amendment Disclosures — Transfer of Financial Assets 1 July 2011
IAS 12 Amendment Recovery of underlying Assets 1 January 2012
IAS 1 Presentation of kems of Other Comprehensive Incomea 1 July 2012
IFRS 8 Financial Instruments Classification & Measurement 1 January 2013
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 1 January 2013
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements 1 January 2013
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 1 danuary 2013
IFRS 13 Farr Value Measurement 1 January 2013
1AS 19 Revised 1 January 2013
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) Effective date
IFRIC 14 Amendmanis Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Reguirament 1 January 2011

The Directors do not anticipate that the adoption of these standards and interpretations will have a material impact on the Group's
financial statements

3. Turnover and segmental information
Revenue disclosed in the statement of comprehensive income 1s analysed as follows

2011 2010

£'000 £000
Qil sales 177 68
Revenue 177 68
Finance income 947 309
Total revenue 1,124 377

For the purposes of segmental information the reportable operating segment 1s determined to be the business segment The Group
has only 1 class of business segment, the exploration for and preductien of hydrocarbon iquids, which s monitored by management

Geographical nfermation
The Group's geographical areas are the United Kingdom and Europe The following tables present certain asset information regarding
the Group’s geographical areas

2011 2010
Revenue from external customers £000 £000
United Kingdom 177 68

201 2010
Non-current assets £000 £000
United Kingdom 48,653 54,617
Europe 69 994

48722 55611

Non-current assets for this purpose consist of ntangible assets and property, plant and equipment

Information about major customers
Revenue from ol sales 1s generated from only 1 customer
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4 Operating loss

201 2010
Operating loss (5 stated after charging £000 £ 000
Exploration and evaluation expense
— Exploration costs written off (see note 13) 381 232
- Pre licence expenditure 380 431
Impairment of Grenade licence 902 -
Depreciation and depleticn of property, plant and equipment o7 17
Foreign exchange (gains)/losses on conditional payments (270) 369
Other foreign exchange losses/{gans) 115 {237)
5 Gain on sale of intangible exploration and evaluation assets
2011

Partial sale of Mariner £°000
Proceeds 87,500
Net book value of assets (32,375)

55,125

On 3 November 2010, the Company completed the sale of a 20 6667% interest in Licence P335, Block 8/11a which contains the Mariner
discovery and associated nights to Statoll (UK) Limited for sale proceeds of £87 5m The Company retains a 6% interest in the field, with
Statolt carrying 3% of costs untl Field Development Plan submission up to a imit of £3 Om

& Auditors’ remuneration

2011 2010
£'000 £000
Audrt of the Group accounts 62 60
Audit of the Company’s accounts 8 7
70 67

Qther fees to auditors
Audit of the Company’s subsidianes pursuant to legislation 20 17
Other services pursuant to legislation 32 27
Taxation services 119 60
171 104

7. Information regarding Directors’ emoluments

Aggregate Directors’ emoluments, which exclude pensions, are £1,631k (2010 £725k) The emoluments of the highest paid Director
were £618k (2010 £279k) In addition he received contributions to a defined contnbution pension schems of £31k (2010 £21k) Further
informaticn 1s included in the Remuneration Report

8 Employees

Headcount
2011 2010
Number Number
Average number of employees of the Group (including Executive Directors) during the year was
Management 3 3
Technical staff/support/other 5 3
Staff costs
2011 2010
£'000 £ 000
Wage and salaries 908 654
Bonuses 1,040 168
Social security costs 276 103
Other pension costs 113 70
2,337 995
Equity-settled share-based payments 706 145
NI on share options 615 -
3,658 1,140

The Company Is llable for Employer’s National Insurance on the difference between the market value at date of exercise and the exercise
price The expense 1s accrued by reference to the share price of the Company at the date of the statement of financial posihon
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For direct employees of Nautical Petroleum ple, the Company contributes 10% of salary to a defined contnbution pension scheme and up
10 2 5% to match employee contnbutions £113k has been charged to the statement of comprehensive ncome for the year (2010 £70k)

10. Interest and simular items

2011 2010
Finance ncome £'000 £ 000
Bank interest 693 309
Dervative income 254 -

047 309
2011 2010
Finance costs £000 £ 000
Costs of borrowing facility 72 103
Other financial costs - 77
Unwinding of discounts on long-term payables 142 191
Effect of change in estimates discounting of long-tarm payables 33 -
247 371
11. Tax on toss on ordinary activities
The major components of the tax credit are
2011 2010
£:000 £ 000
Income tax — prior year adjustment (22) -
Deferred tax
Relating to ongoing and reversal of temporary differences — current year (3,895) 1,570
Relating to ongoing and reversal of temporary differences — prior year 956 -
Effect on opening balance of rate change (95) -
Changs n recoverable amounts of deferred tax assets 2,441 (1,764)
(615) {184)
A reconciliation between the tax credit and the product of the accounting profit muliphed by the standard ncome tax rate 1s as follows
2011 2010
£000 £'000
Profit/{loss) before tax 49,990 (2,475)
Profit/{loss) before tax at the standard UK corporation tax of 27 5% (2010 28%) 13,747 {693)
Effects of
Non-taxable gan on partial sale of Mariner (16,971) -
Expenses and (incoms) not deductible for tax purposes {682) (49)
Prior year adjustment — deferred tax 956 66
Change In recoverable amounts of deferred tax assets 2,441 -
Deforred tax assats not recognised 2,092 568
Effect of change in tax rates (95) -
Effect of supplementary charge (2,103) {86)
Total tax credit on loss on ordinary activities (615) {194)
12. Earnings per share
2011 2010
Earnings/{loss) for the year attributable to equity holders {£°000) 50,605 (2,281)
Basic weighted average number of shares in 1ssug In the year (thousands) 83,575 63,408
Basic earningsAloss) per ordinary share (pence) 60 55 {3 60)
Woeighted average number of shares for diluted earnings {thousands) 85,100 63,408
Diluted earnmings/{loss) per ordinary share {pence) 5947 (3 60)

The weighted average number of shares for diluted earnings includes the effect of 1,625 thousand dilutive share options Share ophons
are considered dilutive If they could be exercised dunng the year at less than the average share price dunng the year (334p)

Due to a loss made from continuing operations dunng 2010 potental ordinary shares resulting from the exercise of share options were

not dilutive
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13 Intangible assets, property, plant and equipment
Movermnents duning the year were as {ollows

Property,

Intangible plant and
assets  equipment
Expioration Davelopment

and and
evaluation production Difica
assets assets assets Total
Cost £000 £000 £ 000 £'000
At 30 June 20092 48,857 285 - 49,142
Additions 6,633 93 - 6,726
Written off {232) ~ - {232)
At 30 June 2010 55,258 378 - 55,636
Additions 19.358 109 399 19,866
Acquisitions 7,000 - - 7,000
Disposals {32,375) - - {32,375
Impairments (902) - - (902)
Wrnitten off (381) - - (381)
At 30 June 2011 47,958 487 399 48,844
Depletion and depreciation
At 30 June 2009 - 8 -~ 3
Prowvided in year - 17 - 17
At 30 June 2010 - 25 - 25
Provided in year - 37 60 97
At 30 June 2011 - 62 60 122
Net book value
At 30 June 2011 47,958 425 339 48,722
At 30 June 2010 55,258 353 - 55,611

The £70m acquisiton relates to Nautical increasing its share of the Kraken field from 35% to 50% The exploration and evaluabon balance

represents the costs related 1o the fields currently being evaluated and appraised, ncluding £29 4m for the Kraken field (2010 £20 3m)
and £8 6m for Catcher (2010 £2 2m) Amounts written off relate to unsuccessful exploration costs primarily due to licences being
relinquished cr in the process of being relinquished The mparrment of £0 8m relates to the Grenade heavy ol field in France There has
been Iittle recent activity and forward plans are uncertan, so the asset has been impared In the event that further activity takes place

this will be reassessed and the balance could be reinstated

Upon field development plan (FDP) approval of Kraken certan amounts become due from Joint Venture partners £3 1min cash on FDP

approval and an £8 Om carry on development spend

14. Trade and other receivables

30 June 30 June

2011 2010

£'000 £'000

Amounts due from joint venture partners 251 263
Other debtors 702 221
Prapayments and accrued interest 398 334
1,351 808

None of the above are impaired
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a0 June 30 June

2011 2010

£'000 £'000

Cash at bank and in hand 25,680 625
Deposits of 3 months or less 10,000 8,105
Restricted cash 17,179 -
Cash and cash equivalents 52,859 8,730
Short-term deposiis 57,115 3,000
Total cash and short-term deposits 109,974 11,730

Restricted cash relates to balances held in Escrow and third party accounts, primarnly for the dnling of the Kraken 9/02b-5 well which

commenced in July 2011

Interest rate and currency exposure

Sterling US dollars Euros CHF Total
At 30 June 2011 £'000 £'000 £:000 £'000 £'000
Balances at fixed interest rates 55,025 2,090 - - 57115
Balances at floating interest rates 30,214 - - - 30,214
Balances on which no interest 1s earned 11,171 11,226 191 57 22,645
96,410 13,316 191 57 109,974
Sterling US dollars Euros CHF Total
A1 30 June 2010 £000 £ 000 £'000 £'000 £ 000
Balances at fixed interest ratas 3,000 - - - 3,000
Balances at floating interest rates 6,334 2,233 - - 8,567
Balances on which no interest 1s sarned 35 - 60 68 163
9,369 2,233 &0 58 11,730
Balances on which no interest 1s earned 1s primarily balances held in Escrow and USD balances
Exposure to financial mstitutions
Balances were held with the following banks
30 June 30 Jure
2014 2010
£'000 £000
Lioyds/Bank of Scotland 50,147 771
Scottish Widows 10,092 3,746
Credit Agricole 12,116 -
Royal Bank of Scotland 26,073 34
Santander/Abbey 191 5,000
JP Morgan 11,016 -
Anglo Insh Bank - 2,035
Other 339 144
109,974 11,730
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16 Trade and other payables

30 June 30 June

2011 2010

Current iabities £'000 £ 000
Trade creditors 3,022 312
Amounts owed to jont venture partners 3,174 -
Employer's National Insurance on unrealised gains on unexercised share options 615 -
Amounts owed to related companies - 56
Accruals 6,443 515
13,254 883

Amounts owed to jont venture partners relates to balances due where Nautical 1s operator and typically arises when funds are called
In advance for operations

The Company 1s liable for Employer's National Insurance on the difference between the market value at date of exercise and the exercise
price The expense IS accrued by reference to tha share price of the Company at the date of the statement of financial position

17. Deferred taxation

30 June 30 June

201 2010

Maovements in the statement of financial positon deferred tax asset £'000 £'000
Tax losses 725 5,682
30 June 30 Juns

201 2010

Moavements in tha statement of financial positon deferred tax lability £'000 £ 000
Accelerated capital allowances 725 5,898
Acquisition farr value adjustments 4,895 5,272
5,620 11,170

Net deferred tax hability 4,895 5,488
30 June 30 June

2011 2010

Moverments in the statement of comprehensive income £°000 £ 000
Accelerated capital allowances {5,173} 1,570
Acquisition farr value adjustments (377) -
Tax losses 4,957 {1,764}

(593} {194)

The acquisition fair value adjustment relates to Nautical Holdings Limited’s acquisition in 2004 of Nautical Petroleum AG

In addition to the above balances for tax losses and accelerated capital allowances, which were recognised at a tax rate of 62% (2010
50%), the Group has a deferred tax asset not yet recognised at a tax rate of 26% of £5 9m {2010 £4 3m at 28%), which has not been
recognised as a result of existing uncertainties of their realisation These arise from tax losses of £11 9m (2010 £5 6m), depreciation in
excess of capital allowances of £7 8m (2010 £6 5m) and deferred consideration of £3 1m {2010 £3 3m) The tax losses are avalable
indefinitely against future taxable profits
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18 Provisions

Prowision for  Conditional

decemmissioning payments Total

£ 000 £'000 £ 000

At 1 July 2010 20 4,083 4,103
Exchange adjustrments - (270) (270)
Effect of changes in estimates - 33 33
Unwinding of discount - 142 142
At 30 June 2011 20 3,988 4,008

The £20k provision for decommissioning costs relate to the Keddington field

Conditional payments compnse 2 amounts relating to the Marinsr Field of (1) $4 Om due on Field Development Plan (FDP) approval by
the Department of Energy and Climate Change {DECC) which 1s anticipated in 2012, and (2) $2 8m due on first ol which i1s anticipated in
2016 The Company believes these events to be sufficiently probable as to provide for their payment The habilities were acquired as part
of the acquisition of the Alba Resources (Haldings) Group in August 2005 The mavement in the year includes both exchange movements
and unwinding of the discount, which are shown in the statement of comprehensive Income The change in estimates applies to a
revision of the estimated trigger dates

18 Borrowing facility

On 20 April the Group cancelled its £7 5m barrowing facility with the Bank of Scotiand This had been n place since November 2007
and was available for general working capital purposes Consequently, the associated first ranking debentures over the assets of the
Company and certan subsidiaries were released

20 Fmanecial instruments

30 June 30 June
2011 2010
Book value  Book value
£000 £ 000
Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents {Including restrcted cash} 52,859 8,730
Short-term deposits 57,115 3,000
Other debtors (note 14} 953 474

Financial iabilities
Trade and other payahbles — current 13,254 883
Conditional payments 3,988 4,083

There 1s no matenal difference between the carrying value and far value of the financial instruments

Market nisk

As an upstream oll and gas entity, the Company 1s subject to many risks ansing in the normal course of the Group's business

The prncipal business nsks are outlined in more detail In the Diractors’ Report on page 27 of this report The Group Is exposed to
macroeconomic nsks including, but not imited to, the strength of capital markets, the ol pnee and the nsk of co-venturer or suppher
defautt, all of which could adversely affect the ability of the Company to finance and execule its planned work programmes

The Company has a diversified portfolio of assets which reman unhedged with respsct to commadity pnee, interest rates and currency
fluctuations Specific financial nstruments risks associated with the Group's financial assets and financial habilities are therefore unlikely
to have the quantum of impact that broader macro nisks, such as those outined above, could pose

The Board reviews and establishes appropnate policies for the management of nsks and monitors them on a regular basis

(1) Financial assets and habilities - commodity price nsk
The Group has enly a small amount of revenue, 0 18 not exposed to any material commodity price rigk on its financial instruments
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20 Financial instruments continued

{2) Financial assets and habities - foreign currency nsk

The Group has transactional currency exposure whereby expenditure 1s iIncurred in currencies which are not the functianal currency of
the relevant Group company {UK sterling} The primary exposure is o the US dollar The Group monitars exchange rate movements and
considers forward purchase of US dollars pnor to major capital programmes requinng dollars

The non-current conditional payments are labilities which are tnggered on future events as set out in note 18, which are in US dolars

The Group has significant capital programmes with some of the spend likely to be In USD  Although the exact amount and timing of
these USD requirements cannot be determined, it 1s appropriate to hold a certain portion of Group funds in USD to mitigate against
unfavourable exchange rate movements Due to the uncertainty of the amounts needed a range 1s set within which the Group would be
indifferent as to whether it holds USD or GBP These conditions lend thamselves to Dual Gurrency Deposits {DCDs) where deposits are
taken out to earn a premium yield, but expose the holder to currency rate movemants In the event that the exchange rate moves beyond
a pre-determined level the deposit 1s returned i the alternative currency but regardless of currency returned on maturity, the enhanced
yield s earned These nstruments are classified as embedded denvatives None were held at the year end

The impact of a 10% change in the UK sterling/USD exchange rate would have been a +/~£958% {2010 +/~£177k) effect on the profit
before tax Further details of the Group's currency exposure on cash and short-term deposits held are set out in note 15 of the
financial staternents

(3) Financial assets and habilities — interest rate nsk
The Group had a bank facility untl Aprit 2011 which was then cancelled It had not been drawn upan [f it had done so, it would have :
been exposed to interast movaements, as the rate was inked to LIBOR rates I

There 1s an insignificant risk of change in the value of cash and deposits as a result of interest rate movements Further details of the
Group interest rate exposure on cash and short-term deposits are set out In note 15 of the financial statements

(4) Financial assets and lrabilities - credit risk
Credit nsk 1s primanly that a partner falls to pay amounts due causing financial loss to the Group The Group currently has timited
exposure to such credit nsk The maximum exposure would be the amounts shown in the statement of financial position '

The Group 15 exposed to credit nisk on the financial institutions with which it holds cash and short-term deposits The Group seeks to
hold cash and deposits with secure Institutions To assist in this evaluation the Group refers to credit ratings and would typically seek
arating of A+ or better Inaddition, cash and deposits are held with several institutions to spread risk Details of the balanceas held In
banking institutions are set out In note 15 of the financial statements

The Group has accounts receivable with joint venture partners in the ol and gas industry and are subject to normal industry credit nsks
The maximum exposure at the date of the statement of financial position 1s £204k (2010 £253k)

{5) Financial assets and liabiities - hquidity nsk

Liquidity nsk s the nsk that sources of funding for the Group's business activiies are not avallable Liquidity management Is a core
activity and 1s regularly reviewed by the Board, in conjunction with the Group's cash forecast information The Board always ensures that
there 1s sufficient funding available before cormmitting to any significant expenditure

As the Group's pnmary focus I1s on exploration and appraisal, to date the Group's funding nesds have been met through a combination
of eguity and portfolio management The Group has successfully raised equity and engaged in farmout activity and asset divestment
to fund work programmes on a number of occasions

The maturity profile of the Group's non-current financial habilities 1s dependent upon certain events as explamed in note 18 The current
habiities fall due within 1 year The Group'’s payment policy Is to settle amounts in accordance with agreed terms which 1s typically
30 days

(6) Financial assets and liabilities — capital management

Tha Group defines capital as the total equity of the Group The cbjective of the Group's capital management 1s to ensure that it makes
maxamum use of its capital to support its business operations and maximise shareholder value There are no constraints on the
Group’s capital

As the Group begins to develop iis fields, debt funding, such as reserve based lending, will become more srignificant and its avallability

will be key to the successful transition of projects from the appraisal to the development phase As outlined above the Group Is exposed

1o macroeconomic nsks including, but not himited to, the strength of caprtal markets, the ol price and the nsk of co-venturer or suppher

default, alt of which could adversely affect the avaitability of future debt and equity funding .
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21 Share capital

At 30 June 2011 At 30 June 2010
Allotted called up and fulty paid Number £'000 Number £ 000
Ordinary shares of 20p each 3,875,000 100 3,875,000 100

34,875,000 6,556
48,995,179 9,799

87,745,179 16,455

34,875,000 6,556
24,658,291 4,932

63,408,291 11,588

Reverse acquisition capital adjustment
Ordinary shares of 20p each

The shares issued In the year are summansed as follows

Number
Shares at 30 June 2010 63,408,291
New ordinary shares of 20p each — 31 August share placement 24,280,000
Exercise of options 37,500
Settlement of amounts due regarding the St Laurent Permit 19,388
Shares at 30 June 2011 87,745,179

Share placing on 31 August 2010 raised £30 35m {£28 9m net of expenses) at a price of 125 pence per share

The Group announced on 24 Novermnber 2005 the acquisition of 22% of the St Laurent Permit onshore France field with the conaideration
to be satisfied by the 1ssuance of 19,388 new ordinary shares of 20p each The seller requested the 1ssue of these shares in March 2011

Due to changes in legislation the Company’s Articles of Association were revised duning the year A special resolution was passed on
11 November 2010 to revoke the authonsed share capital At June 2010 this was £20 0 million, being 100 0 milion shares of 20p each

Equity-settled share options
The details of share options cutstanding at 30 June 2011 are as follows

Outstanding Qutstanding  Exercisable Exercisable

Exorcise et 30June  at30June  at3CJune &t 30 June

Date Issued Exercisabla by price 2011 2010 2011 2010
7 March 2005 7 March 2013 8000p 600,000 600,000 600,000 600,000
23 September 2005 23 September 2015 250 75p 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000
26 September 2005 26 September 2013 22000p 675,000 675000 675000 675,000
18 January 2007 18 January 2015 17700p 287,500 287500 287500 287500
18 January 2008 18 January 2016 21100p 322,500 322,500 322500 322,500
15 Aprl 2008 15 April 2016 185 00p 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000
13 November 2008 13 November 2016 3617p 100,000 100,000 100,000 75,000
12 January 2009 12 January 2017 2675p 395,000 395000 395000 197,500
24 June 2009 24 June 2017 57 10p - 30,000 - 15,000
13 January 2010 13 January 2018 5750p 520,000 550,000 260,000 -
1 December 2010 1 December 2018 355 93p 65,000 - 16,250 -
10 January 2011 10 January 2019 43300p 585,000 - - -
7 April 2011 7 Aprl 2019 41621p 12,500 - - -
Balances 3,627,500 3,025,000 2,721,250 2,237,500

The options were all granted under the Nautical share option scheme rules (with the exception of the 50,000 optiens granted on

23 September 2005 in association with the acquisttion of the Alba Resources (Holdings) Group), whereby from the date of 1ssue 25% are
axercisable after 6 months, 25% after 12 months, 25% after 18 months and 25% after 24 months The options must be exercised within
8 years of Issue Upon cessation of employment no further options can vest and the employee has up to one year to exercise options
which have already vested after which they lapse The exercise price is the highest of either the norminal value of the shares (20p), the

average price for the 30 days preceding grant date or the prnice on grant date
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21 Share capital continued
The following tables summanses some information regarding shares and share options

2011 2010
2011 Weighted 2010 Weighted

Number average Number average

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue/share price (pence) 83,575,367 34363 63,408,291 667
Granted in year/far value of options (pence) 662,500 206 37 550,000 2674
Qutstanding options/remaining contractua! life {years) 3,627,500 453 3,025,000 4 82
2011 2010

£'000 £ 000

Expense recogmsed in statement of comprehensive iIncome in year 706 145

The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise price (WAEP} of, and movements in, share opttons during the year

2011 2011 2010 2010

Number WAEP Number WAEP
QOutstanding at beginning of year 3,025,000 125.05 3,475,000 145 10
Exercised during the year (37,500) (57 26) - -
Lapsed in the year (22,500) {57.37) (1,000,000) (157 50}
Granted durning the year 662,500 42512 550,000 57 50
At 30 June 3,627,500 180.97 3,025,000 12505

The fair value of the share options granted 1s estimated using a binomial model The following table lists the iInputs and assumptions used

in the mode! The weighted average share price for the shares exercised was 444 25p

7Apal 10 January 1December 13 January 24 June

2011 2011 2010 2010 2009

Dividend yield - - - - -
Expected share price volatiity 74 5% 745% 751% 69 0% 737%
Risk free interest rate 4 10% 4 10% 4 16% 461% 3 45%
Leaver rate 200% 200% 200% 22 2% 125%

Volatiity has been based on a weighted average of Nautical's and its peer group’s share prices, the composition of which was revised

durning the year following corporate activity in the sector and to maintain the appropriateness of the comparable group of companies Risk

free Interest rates reflect the interest rate at the time of 1ssue which could be obtained on government secunities of similar matunty to the
options being issued The leaver rate and charge 1s adjusted to reflect the actual number of employees who left the Company during the

peniod of vesting of the options

22 Reconciliation of movements in equity

The reconciliation of movements in equity 1s detalled In the consolidated statement of changes in equity The following 1s a description

of the nature and purpose of each reserve

Share capital and share premium
The Group's share capital and share premum are explaned in note 21

Cumulative translation reserve

The cumulative transtation reserve i1s used to record exchange differences ansing from the translation of the financial statements

of subsidiaries whose functional currency s not UK stering and any fair value adjustrnents associated with therr acquisition These
movements related to Nautical Petroleum AG, which changed its functional currency from US dollars to UK sterlng in October 2007,
following which ne further movements have been recorded As at 30 June 2011 all entities wathin the Group had a UK sterling

functional currency
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Other reserves
Other reserves comprnse the following
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30 June 30 June

201 2010

£'000 £'000

Capital contnbution 2,702 2,702
Merger reserve 12,173 12,173
Warrant reserve 263 263
Capital reserve 14,031 14,031
29,169 29,169

The capital contnbution arese on the formation of Nautical Holdings Limited when equipment was contrbuted to the Company

The merger reserva anses from UK law for merger relief, which sets out rules for subsidianes acquired in whole or in part for shares,
where at least 90% of the Company 1s acquired In such circumstances, where the Company prepares accounts under UK GAAP, the
investment in the Company’s financial statemeants 1s at the nominal value of the shares issued In the Group's financial statements, the

premum 18 recorded (n the merger reserve

In 2005 and 2006 the Company 1ssued a number of warrants to supplement share 1ssues An element of the proceeds raised from the
share 1ssues was allocated to the warrants and classified as warrant reserve The warrants subsequently expired without being exerctsed

The capital reserve arose from the fair value exercise on acquisition of Nautical Petroleurn AG

23. Net cash flows from operating activities

2011 2010
£'000 £ 000
Profit/{loss) for the year 50,605 {2,281)
Finance income (947 {309)
Finance costs 247 371
Gain on parhal sale of Mariner (55,125) -
Taxation (615) {194)
Imparment 902 -
Exploration costs written off 381 232
Share-based payment charges 706 145
Movement in NI cn share options 615 -
Depreciation 97 17
Unrealised foreign exchange movements {270) 369
Operating cash flow before working caprtal movements (3,404) (1,650)
(Increase) in trade and other receivables (584) {45}
Increase/({decrease) in trads and other payables 518 {25)
Net cash used by operations (3,470) (1,720)
Income tax refund 22 -
Net cash outflow from operating activities (3,448} (1,720}
24 Analysis of net cash

At A At

1Jduy 1 July 30 June

2000 Cash flaw 2010 Cash flow 2011

£ 000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cash at bank and in hand 3,061 5,669 8,730 26,950 35,680
Restricted cash - - - 17179 17,1479
Short-ierm deposits 16,000 (13,000} 3,000 54,115 57,115
Net cash 19,061 (7,331) 11,730 98,244 109,974
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25 Commitments
As at 30 June 2011 the Group had capital commutments of £17 5m (2010 £2 6m), which were for Kraken drilling (£13 9m}, 3D seismic
surveys (£2 5mj, and Tudor Rose drilling (£1 1m)

26 Obhgations under leases
Future mimimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases

30 June 30 June

2011 2010

£'000 £ 000

Not more than one year 88 -
After one year but not more than five years 236 -
324 -

The payments are for the office

27 Related party transactions

{a) Key management personnel

The Group defines key management personnel as the Directors of the Company S Jenkins has entered into a loan agreement with
the Company for £4,180 with an outstanding balance due to the Company at 30 June 2011 of £1,742 {2010 £1,750) There are no
transactions with Directors, other than therr remuneration as disclosed in the Remuneration Report

{b) Other related parties

Following the share placement in August 2010 which was accompanied by a placement of IEG shares, International Energy Services
ceased to be a related party However, arrangements existed for provision of services for part of the year which amounted to £130k
(2010 £218k)

28 Ultimate Parent undertaking and controlling party
Detarls of substantial sharsholders are set out in the Directors’ Report The Directors consider that no company has a controlling interest
In Nautcat

29 Subsidiary undertakings

Propaorton

Country of of voting

ncorporation/ nghts &
Subs:diary registration Holding  sharas held Actoity
Nautical Holdings Limited England Ordinary shares 100% Investment and ol equipment
UAH Limited® England Ordinary shares 100% Investment
Nautical Petroleum AG* Switzerland Ordinary shares 100% Exploration, development and production
Alba Resources (Holdings) Limited Scotland Ordinary sharas 100% Dormant
Alba Resources Limited* Scotland Ordinary shares 100% Exploration, development and production
Mountwest 560 Limited” Scotland Ordinary shares 100% Exploration, development and production
Mountwest 561 Limited* Scotland Ordinary shares 100% Dormant
Mountwest 562 Limited* Scotland Ordinary shares 100% Dormant
First Mariner Limited England Ordinary shares 100% Dormant

* Held by subsidiary undertakings

Nautical Petroleum AG carnes out its activities through a UK Branch
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Diwrectors’ responsibihties for the Parent Company financial statements
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Diractors’ Repart and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the Direciors have elected
to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom
Accounting Standards and applicable law} Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are
sabisfied that they give a true and far view of the state of affars of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period
In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to
» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
» make judgements and accounting estmates that are reasonable and prudent,
» state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained
in the financal statements, and
» prepare tha financial statemeants on the going concern basis unless it 1S Inappropriate to presume that the Company will continue
In business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that
the financial staternents comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other rregulariies

The Directors are responstble for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the Company’s
website Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissermination of financial statements may differ from legislation
In other junsdictions
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Independent auditors’ report
to the members of Nautical Petroleum plc

We have audited the Parent company financial statements of Nautical Petroleum plc for the year ended 30 June 2011 which compnse
the Company Balance Sheet and the related notes 30 to 41 The finanoial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation
15 applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, In accordance wath chapter 3 of part 16 of the Companies Act 2006
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in
an auditors' report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by faw, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opmions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained mors fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 55, the directors are responsible for the preparation
of the Parent company financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair vew Cur responsibility 1s to audit and
express an opinion on the Parent company financial statemants in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit iInvolves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reascnable
assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the Parent company’s circumstances and have been consistently
applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimatas made by the drrectors, and the overall
presentation of tha financial statements In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the annual report to
identify material nconsistencies with the audited financial statements I we become aware of any apparent material misstatements
or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Opimon on financial statements

In our opinion the Parent company financial statements

» give a true and far view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 30 June 2011 and of its loss for the year then ended,
» have been properly prepared \n accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

» have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Compames Act 2006
In our opimion tha information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared
Is consistent with the Parent company financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you i,

1N OUr OpNIoN

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not wisited by us, or

= the Parent company financial statements are not In agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

» certan disclosures of diractors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

» we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Other matter
We have reported separately on the group financial statements of Nautical Petroleum ple for the year ended 30 Jung 2011

Kevin Weston (Senmior statutory auditor)

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
Abardeen

14 October 2011
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2014 2010
Notes £'000 £ 000
Fixed assets
Intangble asssts 33 18,499 3,749
Property, ptant and equipment 34 339 -
Investments 35 11,884 11,884
Total fixed assets 30,722 15,633
Current assets
Tradse debtors and other receivables 36 12,5633 17,898
Cash and cash equivalents 47,591 6,028
Short-term deposits 57,115 3,000
Total current assets 117,239 26,926
Creditors amounts falling due within 1 year ar  {82,552) (1,074)
Net current assets 34,687 25,8562
Net assets 65,409 41,485
Capital and reserves 38
Called up share capital 17,549 12,682
Share premium 61,052 37,015
Warrant reserve 263 263
Profit and loss reserve (13,455) (8.475)
Total shareholders’ funds 65,409 41,485

The financial statements were approved by the Board on 14 October 2011 and were signed on its behalf by

S Jenkins W Mathers
Chief Executive Finance Director

C}L, N A~
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30 Accounting policies

{a) Basis of accounts preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the historic cost convention and in accordance with applicable United Kingdom
accounting standards In addition to the requirements of UK accounting standards, the accounting for ol and gas exploration and
production activites is guided by the Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP} “Accounting for Oil and Gas Exploration, Production
and Decommissioning Actvities” 1ssued by the UK Ol Industry Accounting Committee on 7 June 2001 The financial information has
been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the SORP

({b) Exploration, evaluation and development expenditure

All costs incurred after the nghts to explore an area have been obtained are accumulated and capitalised as intangible exploration and
evaluation (EQE) assets If facts and circumstances indicate that the carrying value of the E&E asset may exceed its recoverable amount
an impairment review 1s performed

{c} Office assets

Office assets are stated at cost less accumudated depreciation Depreciation 1s provided on a straight-line basis to wnte off the costs less
estmated residual value over the expected useful Iife of the assets, which has been determined to be three years The carrying values are
reviewed for imparment when events or circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable

{d) Leases

Where the lassor retains substantially all the nsks and benefits of ownership the lease 1s classified as an operating lease and amounts due
are charged to the statement of comprehensive income over the lsase term on a straight-lne basis The Company's office 1s held under
an operating lease

(e) Foreign currencies
Asssts, habiliies, revenues and costs denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the rates of exchange ruling at the date of the
transactions, monetary assets and habilities at the balance sheet date are translated at the year end rats of exchange

{f) Share-based payments
Employees (ncluding Directors and senior executives) of the Company recerve remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby these individuals render services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions™)

The cost of equity-setiled transactions 1s recognised, together with a corresponding Increase In equity, over the period in which the
parformance and/or sarvice conditions are fulfiled, ending on the date on which the relevant indwviduals bacome fully entitted to the award
{"vesting pomnt") The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date untll the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting penod has expired and the Company’s bast estimate of the number of equity instruments and value that
will uitimately vest The charge for the year represents the movement in cumulative expense recogmised as at the beginning and end of
that year

The far value of share-based remuneration 1s determined at the date of grant and recognised as an expense In the profit and loss
account on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, taking account of the estimated number of sharas that will vest The farr value
18 determined by use of a binomial modal

(g) Investments in subsidiaries

The Company records investments in subsidianies at cost less prowision for mpairment Where subsidiaries have been acquired in part
for shares and at least 90% of the Company has been acquired the merger relef provisions ¢f the Companies Act 2006 have baen
applied The share element of the transaction 1s recorded at the nominal value of the shares 1ssued

31 Losses attnibutable to Nautical Petroleum plc
The loss for the year dealt with In the accounts of Nautical Petrotsum plc was £5,686k {2010 £1,580kK) As provided by s408 of the
Companies Act 2006, no profit and loss account 1s presented in respect of Nautical Petroleum plc
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Headcount
2011 2010
Number Number
Average number of employses of the Company (including Executive Directors) dunng the year was
Management 3 3
Technical staff/support/other 5 3
Staff costs
2011 2010
£'000 £'000
Wage and salanes 908 654
Bonuses 1,040 168
Social Security costs 276 103
Other pension costs 113 70
2,337 995
Equity-settled share-based payments 706 145
NI on share options 615 -
3,658 1,140
Further Information regarding the remuneration awarded to Directors 1s provided in the Remuneration Report on page 29
33 Intangible assets
Totat
Exploration and evaluation assets £ 000
At 1 July 2010 3,749
Acquisition 7,000
Additions 9,040
Imparments {902)
Exploration costs wnitten off {388)
At 30 June 2011 18,499

Amounts written off relate to unsuccessful exploration costs primanly due to icences being relinquished or in the process of being
relinguished The imparment of £0 9m relates to the Grenade heavy ol field in France There has been little recent actvity and forward
plans are uncertan, so the asset has been mparrad In the event that further activity takes place this will be reassessed and the balance

could be reinstated

34. Property, plant and equipment. Office assets

Cost £ 000
At 1 July 2010 -
Additions 399
At 30 June 2011 399
Depreciation £ 000
At 1 July 2010 -
Additrons 60
At 30 June 2011 60
Net book value

At 30 June 2011 339
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Notes to the Company financial statements continued

35 Investments

Jotal

Invastmenits in subsidiary companies £'000
Cost
At 1 July 2010 and at 30 June 2011 11,884

Details of subsidiary companies are shown in note 28 of the consclidated financial statements

In accounting for the acquisitions of Nautical Holdings Limited, the Alba Rescurces {(Holdings) Group and First Manner Limited the
Company has applied the merger relief provisions of the Companies Act 2006

36 Trade debtors and other receivables

2014 2010

£'000 £000
Amounts owed by subsidiaries 11,254 17,144
Amounts due from joint venture partners 251 253
Other debtors 637 171
Prepayments and accrued interest 391 330

12,533 17,898

37 Creditors amounts falling due to within 1 year

2011 2010

£'000 £ 000
Amounts owed to subsidiaries 69,527 668
Trade creditors 2,909 69
Amounts owed to joint ventures partners 3,174 -
Amounts owed to related compantes - 56
Employer’s National Insurance on unrealised gains on unexercised share options 615 -
Accruals 6,327 281

82,552 1,074

The Company 1s hable for Employer's National Insurance on the difference between the market value at date of exercise and the exercise
price The expense I1s accrued by referance to the share price of the Company at the date of the statement of financial position

38. Share capital and reserves

Share Share Warrant Profit and Total
capital prermium raserve  loss reserve equity
£ 000 £000 £000 £ 000 £'000
At 1 July 2010 12,682 37,015 263 (8,475) 41,485
Shara-based paymeants - - - 706 706
New shares issued 4,867 25,583 - - 30,450
Costs associated with issuance of new shares - {1,546) - - {1,546)
Lass for the year - - - (5.686) (5,686)
At 30 June 2011 17,549 61,052 263 (13,455) 65,409

Detals of share capital and share-based payments are set out in note 21 of the consolidated financial statemants
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39 Commitments
As at 30 June 2011 the Campany had capital commitments of £10 3m (2010 £0 4m), which were for Kraken drilling {£6 9m), 3D seisrmc
surveys (€2 3m), and Tudor Rose dnlling (£1 1m)

40. Obhgations under leases
Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases

30 June 30 June

2011 2010

£'000 £'000

Not more than one yaar 88 -
After one year but not more than five years 236 —
324 -

The payments are for the office

41 Related party transactions
The Company has taken advantage of the exemption in FRSS, not to disclose transactions with its wholy owned substdianies
The following sats out the related party transactions for key management and other related parties

(a) Key management personnel

The Group defines key management personnel as the Directors of the Company S Jankins has entared into a loan agreement with
the Company for £4,180 with an outstanding balance due to the Company at 3¢ June 2011 of £1,742 {2010 £1,750) There are no
transactions with Directors, other than thetr remuneration as disclosed in the Remuneration Report

{b) Other related parties

Following the share placement In August 2010 which was accompanied by a placemant of |EG shares, International Energy Services
ceased to be a related party However, arrangsments existed for provision of services tor part of the year which amounted to £130k
(2010 £218k)
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Shareholder information

Registered and Carporate Office
6th Floor
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London
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100 Wood Street

London
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Ambnan Partners Limited
Old Change House

128 Queen Victona Street
London

ECAV 4BJ

Tel +44 (0)20 7634 4700

Solicitors

CMS Cameron McKenna LLP
Mitre House

160 Afdersgate Street

London

EC1A 4DD
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Glossary

API
bbl
bcf
bn
bopd
cp

DECC
DST
ESP
EWT
FDP

Amencan Petrolaum Institute®
barrels

billion cubic feet

bilion

barrels of ol per day
centipoises

Darcy

Department of Energy and Climate Change
dnll stern test

Electric Submersible Pump
extended wel! test

fisld development plan

FEED
FPSO
km

MD
mmbo
MWD
OWC
TVDss
UKCS
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Front End Engineering and Design
Floating, Production, Storage and Offtake
kilometres

thousand

milion

Measured Depth

million barrets of ol

measurement while dnling
oll-water contact

Total Vertical Depth subsea
United Kingdom Continental Shelf
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